
   

Mayor 
James Kacsh 
 

Council Members 
Kristin Carpenter 
Tim Joyce 
David Allison 
Bret Bradford 
EJ Cheshier 
David Reggiani 
James Burton 
 

City Manager 
Randy Robertson 
 

City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois 
 

Deputy Clerk 
Tina Hammer 
 

Student Council 
Sarah Hoepfner 
Gabrielle Brown 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  

MARCH 05, 2014 @ 7:30 PM  
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM  

 

   AGENDA 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the republic for 
which it stands, one Nation under God, indivisible with liberty and justice for all.  
 

C. ROLL CALL 
Mayor James Kacsh, Council members Kristin Carpenter, Tim Joyce, David Allison,  
Bret Bradford, EJ Cheshier, David Reggiani and James Burton  

 

  D. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA…………………..……........………... (voice vote) 
 

E. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 

F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Guest Speaker 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items…………………………………......… (3 minutes per speaker) 

3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions     (Harbor, HSB, Parks & Rec, P&Z, School Board) 

4. Superintendent’s Report…………………………………………………………………………...…. (page 1) 
5. Student Council Representative Report 
 

G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR………………………………………….….…. (roll call vote) 
6. Resolution 03-14-13………………………………………………………………………..……….. (page 14) 

A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, designating asset allocation 
for investment of the City’s General Reserve (permanent) Fund 

7. Record excused absences for Council members Kristin Carpenter and Dave Reggiani from the 
February 19, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 

H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
8. Regular Meeting Minutes 2-19-14………………………………..……….....……………................ (page 16) 
 

I. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS 
9. Council approval of contract with Eagle Contracting to perform the upgrades.……...... (voice vote)(page 21) 
 to the shell of the Solid Waste Baling Facility 
 

J. REPORTS OF OFFICERS  
10. Mayor’s Report 
11. Manager’s Report  

a. Police Chief, George Wintle, letter in re Citizens’ Advisory Committee…………………..….. (page 31)
12. City Clerk’s Report…………………………………..……...……………………………...…….... (page 32) 
 

K. CORRESPONDENCE  
13. Email from Karen Swartzbart in re Whitshed speed limit 02-18-14…………………….…..…….. (page 35) 
14. Chenega IRA Council request for donation 02-28-14…………………………………..……...….. (page 42) 
 

L. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
15. Resolution 03-14-14……………………………………………………...………… (roll call vote)(page 44) 

A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing amendment to 
the FY14 budget and authorizing the transfer of prior appropriations in the amount of $50,000 
for the purchase of chip seal oil 



   

16. Resolution 03-14-15…………………………………………………………...…… (roll call vote)(page 46) 
A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska amending the FY14 budget to 
recognize the receipt of $300,645.39 from the Department of Homeland Security to reimburse 
the City for expenses incurred during the 2012 snow event and to appropriate $120,000 of 
those funds to fund the acquisition of a piece of asphalt patching equipment, a double drum 
roller and one tank of chip seal oil to fulfill the city’s road maintenance program for 2014 

 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
17. BDO arrangement letter to staff regarding Financial Audit for 2013……………………….…….. (page 68) 
18. Request for a letter of support in re Exxon reopener 02-18-14………………...…...… (voice vote)(page 81) 
19. Pending Agenda and Calendar………………………………………………………..........…...….. (page 87) 
 

O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
20. Council Comments 
 

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
21. Attorney legal advice regarding Cordova Center finances 
22. Update on negotiations regarding land sale to PWSSC 
23. Update on NVE Performance Deed of Trust  
   

R. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive Sessions:  Subjects which may be discussed are:  (1) Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an 
adverse effect upon the finances of the government; (2) Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person; provided 

that the person may request a public discussion; (3) Matters which by law, municipal charter or code are required to be confidential; (4) 
Matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosure. 

If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 
Full City Council agendas and packets available online at www.cityofcordova.net 



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



MEMO, City of Cordova 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
Through: Randy Robertson, City Manager 
 
From:   Jon K. Stavig, Finance Director 
 
Date:  26 February 2014  
 
RE:  Annual Asset Allocation Policy 
 
Each year the City’s investment policy requires the establishment of asset allocations by resolution. The 
last year the City revisited this was during FY ’12. 
 
I contacted Buck Adams at UBS for his recommendation for FY ’14.  His recommendation is to change 
the allocation banks variations from 5% to 10% to allow a more flexibility should we encounter another 
2007-2009 period. 
 
The attached resolution reflects this change and my recommendation for the Council to adopt this 
resolution as presented. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

Jon K Stavig, Finance Director 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14



 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 03-14-13 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 

DESIGNATING ASSET ALLOCATION FOR INVESTMENT OF THE CITY’S 
GENERAL RESERVE (PERMANENT) FUND 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Cordova has a City General Reserve Fund, also known as the 

City Permanent Fund, established under CMC 5.44.010; and 
 

 WHEREAS, CMC 5.44.040 sets forth the manner in which the General Reserve Fund 
will be managed, including the adoption of an investment policy; and 
 

WHEREAS, on August 16, 2010 Resolution 08-10-50 was passed establishing an 
Investment Policy for the City of Cordova General Reserve Fund; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 6 of the Investment Policy establishes Authorized Investments for 
the General Reserve Fund, subject to an approved asset allocation policy; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 8.2 of the Investment Policy requires establishment of asset 

allocation by resolution annually. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of 
Cordova, Alaska, hereby designates the following asset allocation amounts +/-10%, to serve as 
the FY2014 asset allocation policy for investment of the City’s General Reserve Fund. 
 
   50% Fixed Income 
   40% Equities 
   10% Alternative Investments 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 5th DAY OF MARCH, 2014 
 

        
             
        ______________________________ 
        James Kacsh, Mayor 
             
            ATTEST:  
 
        ______________________________ 
        Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
                

15



 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

FEBRUARY 19, 2014 @ 7:30 PM 
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM  

MINUTES 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor James Kacsh called the Council Regular Meeting to order at 7:40 pm on February 19, 2014, in the 
Library Meeting Room. 
B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Boy Scout Troop 624 led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. The troop then led the audience in the 
singing of Happy Birthday to City Attorney, Holly Wells. 
C. ROLL CALL 
Present for roll call were Mayor James Kacsh and Council members Tim Joyce, David Allison, Bret 

Bradford and EJ Cheshier. Council member James Burton was present via teleconference. Council 
Members Kristin Carpenter and Dave Reggiani were absent. Also present were City Manager Randy 

Robertson, City Clerk Susan Bourgeois and Student Council Representative Sarah Hoepfner.  
D. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
M/Bradford S/Allison to approve the Regular Agenda.  
Mayor Kacsh added a second guest speaker, Joel Azure of NVE. 
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Carpenter, Reggiani). Motion passes. 
E. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST  
David Allison declared a conflict on agenda item 12 because he works for Eagle and he was involved in the 
proposal they put forward. Mayor Kacsh agreed. 
F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Guest Speaker  

a. Charles (Buck) Adams and Chad Adams, UBS Financial, City Investments – Buck and Chad both 
reported to Council on the City’s Investments and how the City fared through 4th quarter of 2013. After a 
lengthy detailed report, Buck said there were horrific gyrations in the market and right now we are happy to 
be flat. 

b. Joel Azure, NVE presented Council with a letter which was written to Robertson as the two will be 
working out negotiations on the performance deed of trust. He said he wanted to see if Council had questions 
about NVE’s plans to satisfy the liquidated damages. Bradford said that Azure was working with the City 
Manager on that, right? That was agreed to by Azure.  

2. Audience comments regarding agenda items: 
Clay Koplin of CEC, mentioned that his Board of Directors had asked him to take a look at Crater Lake for 
hydro possibilities after they realized that the City was looking in that direction for water supply possibilities. 
He mentioned the demands that are put on water supply and electric supply by the seafood processing 
industry in Cordova in the summer months. Then he said there are demands in winter months on both due to 
freeze up. He has been working with the Public Works department and City Manager to explore these options 
together – it has been a collaborative effort. Cost sharing could be helpful – i.e. sharing in the infrastructure 
initial costs and then sharing in maintenance costs once built as well. 
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions 
HSB – Allison said they had a meeting earlier tonight, we evaluated Providence’s contract, and we evaluated 
the administrator and re-credentialed three providers and received a report from the administrator. 
Planning and Zoning – Reggiani was not present to report. 
School Board – Bradford said school board meets tomorrow night and he asked Allison if he could attend in 
his place. 
4. Student Council Representative Report – Sarah Hoepfner said that this coming weekend there are 
conference Basketball games against Houston and JH Volleyball will travel to Glennallen and Tok. Also, 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

PAGE 1 OF 5 16



 
there is a four day weekend due to in-service on Monday and Tuesday. Next weekend is Homecoming 
against Valdez and the theme is Time Warp. Next week also, National Ocean Sciences Bowl will compete in 
Seward and last week Future Problem Solvers had the team state qualifying competition and this week is 
individuals. Student Council’s main focus now is homecoming. 
G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  
Mayor Kacsh informed Council that the consent calendar was before them. 
5. Substitute Resolution 02-14-10 a resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, 
supporting development of a PWS Tanner Crab management plan by 2015, to be discussed at the statewide 
King and Tanner Crab Board of Fish meeting in Anchorage March 17-21, 2014  
6. Resolution 02-14-11 a resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the 
conveyance of 1556 square feet of ATS 220, adjacent to the West side of Lot 1, Block 1 of the Cordova 
Industrial Park to Ocean Beauty Seafoods LLC 
7. Council waiving right to protest renewal of liquor licenses Powder House, Gandy Dancer Bar and AK 
Commercial Co. 
8. Council concurrence of Mayor’s appointment(s) to the Parks & Rec Commission 
9. Record excused absence for Burton from the February 5, 2014 Regular Meeting 
Vote on Consent Calendar: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Reggiani, Carpenter). Joyce-yes; Allison-yes; Burton-
yes; Cheshier-yes and Bradford –yes. Consent Calendar was approved. 
H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
M/Bradford S/Burton to approve the Minutes. 
10. Public Hearing Minutes 2-05-14 
11. Regular Meeting Minutes 2-05-14 
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Carpenter, Reggiani). Motion passes. 
I. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS 
12. Council approval of contract with Eagle Contracting for upgrades to drain piping at Baler Facility 
M/Cheshier S/Bradford to direct the City Manager to enter into a contract with Eagle Contracting 
Corporation of Cordova, Alaska, to perform the upgrades to the drain piping located at the solid waste 
baling facility for a sum of One Hundred Ninety-Five Thousand Dollars ($195,000). 
Joyce asked the Manager to give a brief overview. Robertson said this is the first of a few to come before 
Council. This is to get the floor fixed, the drain working. Mr. Hallquist and Mr. Dahl did a great job with 
the RFP and the bid review, etc. Robertson said the recommendation is to move forward with this – it is 
long overdue. 
Vote on motion: 4 yeas, 1 conflicted (Allison), 0 nays, 2 absent (Carpenter, Reggiani). Motion passes. 
13. Council approval of contract with Premier Electric for installation and connection of the generator at the 
Mt Eccles emergency shelter 
M/Joyce S/Bradford to direct the City Manager to enter into a contract with Premier Electric of Wasilla, 
Alaska, to perform the installation and connection of the 320kw mobile generator at the Mt. Eccles 
Emergency Shelter (Mt. Eccles Elementary School) for a sum of One Hundred Sixty Seven Thousand 
Eighty Two Dollars ($167,082). 
Joyce asked the Manager to give a brief overview of this one too. Robertson said we were able to get a 
second batch of money from the State for this, as in the initial process there was not enough to complete the 
job. An extra $97K was offered so we started over and re-bid the job with the additional funding.  
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Carpenter, Reggiani). Motion passes. 
J. REPORTS OF OFFICERS 
14. Mayor’s Report – Mayor Kacsh said 1) thanked the Fisheries Advisory Committee for meeting on such 
short notice to help Council with a resolution for Board of Fish; 2) he attended the Fire Department Banquet; 
3) He would like to begin conversations with DoT concerning the speed limit on Whitshed Road 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

PAGE 2 OF 5 17



 
15. Manager’s Report – Robertson reported that: 1) we received a very positive letter of support from Dr. Ng 
of PWSCC – he wrote a personal note to Austerman and Stevens regarding the Cordova Center; 2) yesterday 
PWSEDD passed a resolution of support for getting the Cordova Center done; 3) he has received the first 
offer from PWSSC to purchase the fill-lot; 4) he’d like Holly Wells, to introduce Max Gardner, new member 
of the legal team for Cordova Center, Wells mentioned that he is the construction law expert at the firm, she 
is glad to have him on the case and they will talk during executive session; 4) Robertson said he heard from 
Bitney that a successful strategy a few years ago was “lunch on Cordova” for the legislature which consisted 
of 50 - 60 or so pounds of halibut, so he wonders how to accomplish this – Bitney has said it went over well 
then and would again, he said the executive chef down there is a friend of Bitney’s and he could pull it off if 
we were to get the fish. 
16. Staff Reports  

a. Charles (Buck) Adams, UBS, City Investments – already heard from him earlier 
b. Public Works Department overview – Robertson and a team from Public Works gave a 

presentation of the different divisions and their challenges: Hallquist, Greenwood, Dahl, Howard, spoke to 
power point presentation slides concerning the various divisions, Streets, Water/Sewer and Refuse. Some 
main points that were discussed included aging infrastructure (road, pipes), systemic problem of employee 
turnover within the divisions, aging and limited supply of heavy equipment (i.e. only one of each of some of 
the vitally important pieces), water capacity vs. seasonal increased demands, “can to the curb” campaign in 
refuse (i.e. need for Council assistance in educating the public). There was a question from Council member 
Joyce who asked if there has been a calculation made regarding the supply available if we were to make 
Crater Lake a City water source. Hallquist said he is carefully preparing the RFP for LT2 to include such 
things as that; these firm are aware of that and can get the answer to that question. The presentation 
continued with Bill Howard speaking to roads. He mentioned that 20 years ago there were numerous wash-
outs of City streets and roads after each rain storm. So over the years, many drainage projects have been 
done and many streets have been chip-sealed – these two things have helped the washout situation 
immensely. Hallquist went on to explain the Ray Tech reclaimer which is a patching machine for asphalt 
and there is a resolution later in the meeting where the Council can approve the purchase of this along with 
3 barrels of oil to proceed with chip-sealing this summer also. 
17. City Clerk’s Report – Bourgeois said she had a written report in the packet. 
K. CORRESPONDENCE  
18. Letter from NVE thanking City for Sobriety donation 01-15-14 
19. Notice from Division of Elections in re comment period on boundary changes 01-21-14 
20. Council letter to ARRT in re dispersants 02-06-14 
L. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS  
21. Resolution 02-14-12 a resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska authorizing the 
appropriation of $170,000 from the receipt of money previously obligated and spent in support of the 2012 
snow emergency for the acquisition and use of chip-seal oil and an infrared asphalt patching apparatus to 
fulfill the City’s road maintenance program for fiscal year 2014 and into the future 
M/Joyce S/Cheshier to approve Resolution 02-14-12 a resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Cordova, Alaska authorizing the appropriation of $170,000 from the receipt of money previously obligated 
and spent in support of the 2012 snow emergency for the acquisition and use of chip-seal oil and an infrared 
asphalt patching apparatus to fulfill the City’s road maintenance program for fiscal year 2014 and into the 
future 
Joyce said he thought the money to fund snowpocalypse was taken from the general fund not the permanent 
fund so he thought it should be returned to that fund but the resolution says the remainder will go into the 
permanent fund. He would like to amend that. Robertson said that he found savings in the budget already 
(albeit we are only in February) to help fund chip-sealing, he said the City can contribute $50K which 
comes to 2 tanks of oil. Council thought it prudent to make that amendment to the resolution as well; to take 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

PAGE 3 OF 5 18



 
it down to $120K. The point was made and reiterated that asphalt is a down-the-road plan, this purchase 
was for regular annual maintenance; i.e. chip-sealing and repairs and maintenance to paved roads. Also, this 
equipment purchase will be usable in the future if/when we do pave roads, as it is used for patching asphalt 
(works for the present because about half our roads are asphalt now). Allison asked why we chose this size 
piece of equipment instead of the smaller 2-ton model. Howard responded that this model was better suited 
to the asphalt that we would be using for patching. If we had a batch plant, were creating new asphalt, a 
two-ton would be sufficient, but with old asphalt the 4-ton works better at breaking it down for use. Burton 
wanted an answer to one simple question, of the $170K in the resolution, how much was for the equipment 
and how much for chip-seal oil. Robertson said $95K was the 2 pieces of equipment, $75K for 3 tanks of 
oil. Burton is not a fan of chip-sealing, he is ok with the equipment purchase.  
M/Joyce S/Bradford to amend the resolution by changing $170,000 to $120,000 in the title, in the 5th 
whereas and in the “now, therefore, be it resolved” paragraph and by changing “permanent” fund to 
“general” fund in the 5th whereas.  
Robertson said that with the diversity of concerns and opinions, we can go ahead and order the oil and look 
into the infrared machine and answer all of the questions, so please if you forward all questions, we can 
bring it back in two weeks.  
Vote on motion to amend: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Carpenter, Reggiani). Motion passes. 
M/Allison S/Burton to refer to staff. 
Allison said he is interested in referring this because he thinks we all need more information on the piece of 
equipment and the two week delay is not too much to still be timely for spring. Bradford said he sees “Little 
Willy” being towed around all summer, so in this instance, he doesn’t see this piece of equipment as 
possibly one that is purchased and then used once; he thinks it will get used. Mayor Kacsh said he is not in 
favor of putting this off. Cheshier said he is not in favor of putting this off as long as the staff is fine with 
this piece of equipment. Burton opined that there are just enough questions about the piece of equipment 
that he is in favor of referring as well. Robertson wanted to ensure Council that just because they approve 
something, it doesn’t mean staff blindly goes and spends money; if any new information turns up that 
makes this purchase not smart, we won’t do it.  
Vote on motion to refer: 2 yeas, 3 nays (Joyce, Cheshier, Bradford), 2 absent (Carpenter, Reggiani). Motion 
fails. 
Vote on the main motion: 3 yeas, 2 nays (Burton, Allison), 1 absent (Carpenter). Motion fails. 
The main motion failed because a vote to appropriate money needs a majority of all of council vote per 
CMC 3.12.080C, which would mean 4 yeas were needed to pass this motion. At the meeting, this was not 
made clear and those in attendance did believe it passed. However, after the fact it was determined that the 
motion did not pass and Council members were immediately made aware of the error.  
M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - none 
N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
22. Pending Agenda and Calendar 
Next regular meeting is March 5.  
O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
Theresa Keel, Superintendent of Schools, 1013 Whitshed, had couple of things to discuss. In November she 
had made a few funding requests to Council, for Capital items and for in-kind funding. There was insurance 
money that Council had originally appropriated which the state did not allow as outside the cap but instead 
considered it in-kind. Therefore, she had asked the City to provide the school with the same funds ($66K) as 
capital funds which could be used for classroom computers that have already been purchased and we can just 
swap the money out which would ensure that we could retain a teaching position. She said she brought this to 
staff and was directed to bring it back to Council. So, she is looking for an answer on this. Final count 
numbers were received in December and we had some changes and it indicated there is some wiggle room in 
the cap. An extra $30K or so could come from the City to the school; she wants them to be aware that she is 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

PAGE 4 OF 5 19



 
coming back to request that amount. In the 2012-2013 school year, the State has said that the City overpaid, 
so the good news for the City is that the District will be writing a check back to the City for $50. She also 
mentioned that 2 weeks ago she had been in Juneau and she spoke to at least 10 different legislators and 
made it clear how unique a situation we are in because of the generous City funding we receive as well as 
how generous the public is with activity funding as well as approving of bonds, etc. in Cordova. She also 
spoke at length in Juneau to legislators regarding the Cordova Center and the feedback she received was that 
talking points need to speak to “need” vs. “want” and she would like to get more info so she can say those 
things when she returns to Juneau on March 2, 3.  
Tom Bailer 304 Orca Inlet, said that the public works department gave a presentation tonight speaking to the 
“foundation” of the City, sewer, water, roads, it has all been neglected and it all needs repair and we are just 
going to have to bite the bullet and spend some money on it. You have experts in this field, they come to you 
and you need to help them get it done, handle the dollars let them choose the tools. Staff has done their work, 
lean on them, and take their recommendations. Mayor mentioned speed limit on Whitshed Rd. Did Council 
sign a resolution supporting that? The answer was yes; he said he is not in favor of that.  
Bill Howard thanked Council for the time and effort they put in he knows it’s not easy. 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
23. Council Comments 
Burton said he meant to comment during commission comments that the Harbor had a really productive 
meeting last week and we discussed ladders, dumpsters, grants, travel lift, maintenance issues. NVE is going 
to help get us as many as 200 up and out ladders for the harbor. He also wanted to thank Donald Kurz for 
getting this meeting on the internet (ASLN TV) he has been able to watch while on phone and it has been 
extremely helpful. Thanked staff as well for all the work that went into the presentation tonight. 
Cheshier said let’s get some of those roads fixed this summer. 
Allison said that as far as the school and the insurance money, he doesn’t have a problem if the school board 
looks at their budget and says they need extra money for a science teacher, but he doesn’t like just blindly 
giving them $66K for the insurance which has already been paid. Also, if we are $30K under the cap, I 
committed to funding to the cap and I will vote to do so, if they can show that they need the extra money. As 
far as staff work on the infrared machine – I am sure they worked hard on it, its $100K that I don’t take 
lightly. It still requires a budget appropriation which hasn’t been done yet. 
Bradford thanked Josh (Hallquist) and Brandon (Dahl) for getting things moving at the Baler Facility. He 
also thanked Don (Kurz) for the broadcasting. 
Joyce also thanked Kurz and said it sounds successful already even though this is the first time trying this, 
well done. 
Mayor Kacsh asked for a five minute recess.  
M/Bradford S/Allison to take a five minute recess. Hearing no objection, the meeting was recessed at 10:41 
pm and then reconvened at 10:46 pm. 
Q.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
24. Attorney legal advice regarding Cordova Center finances 
M/Allison S/Bradford to enter an executive session to receive attorney legal advice regarding the Cordova 
Center a matter involving consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public 
disclosure. 
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Carpenter, Reggiani). Motion passes. 
Council entered executive session at 10:46 pm and was back in regular session at 11:14 pm. 
R.  ADJOURNMENT 
M/Allison S/Joyce to adjourn. Hearing no objections the meeting was adjourned at 11:14 pm. 
Approved: March 5, 2014 
 

Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
FEBRUARY 19, 2014 

PAGE 5 OF 5 20



Swq12xxxxxxxxxx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 February 26, 2014 
Memo to City Council 
Re: Baler Shell Project 02-14 
 
CMC 5.12.040 “Council approval of contracts” says: 
 

No contract for supplies, services or construction which obligates the city to pay more than fifteen thousand 

dollars may be executed unless the council has approved a memorandum setting forth the following essential 

terms of the contract: 

A.   The identity of the contractor; 

B.   The contract price; 

C.   The nature and quantity of the performance that the city shall receive under the contract; and 

D.   The time for performance under the contract. 

 
 

A total of (11) contractors attended the pre-bid meetings for RFP 02-14 Baler Shell. A total of 
(3) proposals were received in response to RFP 02-14 Baler Shell.  The proposal from H 
Construction was nonresponsive and rejected.  The RFP states that bidders must both include 
“drape type insulation” in the base bid, and an Alternate 1 for siding panels instead H 
Construction proposed spray foam, with no Alternate 1 for siding panels.  Because H 
Construction’s bid is incomplete and materially varies from the Scope of Work described in the 
RFP, resulting in a bid priced lower than the other bidders, it is rejected. After the rejection of H 
construction bid, the bid from Eagle was accepted at 507,896.00 as lowest bid. Following the 
acceptance of the bid from Eagle, the City and Eagle have negotiated a change order altering the 
original scope of work.  The change order will be executed simultaneously with the Contract, 
and will reduce the total contract price to $445,700. The City Manager determined that 
narrowing the scope of work, reducing the cost and the time saving is most advantageous to the 
City. 
 

I recommend the City enter into a contract with Eagle Contracting Corporation of Cordova, Alaska, to 

perform the upgrades to the shell of the Solid Waste Baling Facility as set forth in the attached Request 

for proposal #02-14.   

 

The total contract price is not to exceed Four Hundred Forty-five Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars 

($445,700.00).   

 

A summary of the nature and quantity of the performance the city shall receive is set forth in the attached 

Request for proposal #02-14. All construction must be complete and final payment requested prior to May 

30th 2014.  

 

    

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 
 

 

21



22



23



 

City of Cordova 

Cordova, Alaska 

Whitshed Baler Facility 

Request  for Proposal # 02-14 

Baler Shell  

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

The City of Cordova is request ing writ ten proposals from qualified Contractors interested in 

providing the necessary design-build services to renovate the exist ing Baler Facility Shell. Renovat ions are 

to include demolit ion and replacement  of all wall and roof purlins, metal siding, metal roofing, and 

exterior doors at  the Whitshed Baler Facility. The renovat ions will also include the addit ion of an insulat ion 

system and concrete knee walls around the perimeter of the facility. Sealed proposals plainly marked, 

“ RFP #02-14– Baler Shell addressed to the City M anager, City of Cordova, P.O. Box 1210, Cordova, AK 

99574 will be accepted unt il 2:00 p.m. February 24, 2014.  PROPOSALS RECEIVED AFTER 2:00 P.M . WILL 

NOT BE CONSIDERED. 

Copies of this RFP may be obtained from Josh Hallquist  at  City hall, or by calling 424-6231. A 

mandatory pre-bid meet ing will be held at  10:00am on 2-14-14 at  the Baler Facility. The City of Cordova 

reserves the right  to reject  any and all proposals, to waive technical or legal deficiencies, to accept  any 

proposal that is in the best  interest of the City, and to negot iate the terms and condit ions of any proposal 

leading to acceptance and final execut ion of a cont ract  for services. 

If you have any quest ions pertaining to the submit tal and review process of City bids please 

contact  Josh Hallquist  at  907-424-6231. 

I. INTENT OF SOLICITATION 

The City of Cordova (City) is solicit ing compet it ive proposals from qualified cont ractors to provide 

the necessary design-build services to renovate the exist ing Baler Facility Shell. Renovat ions are to include 

demolit ion and replacement  of all wall and roof purlins, metal siding, metal roofing, and exterior doors at  

the Whitshed Baler Facility. The renovat ions will also include the addit ion of an insulat ion system and 

concrete knee walls around the perimeter of the facility.  Addit ional service requirements will be found in 

SECTION III, SCOPE OF WORK. 

II. BACKGROUND

The Baler Facility is a working Solid Waste Transfer Stat ion const ructed in the 1980’s. It  is used to 

collect , sort , process, bale, and t ransfer solid waste to the landfill. The facility consist  of the main Baler 

Building (Baler Building) which is a steel frame metal building (60’x112’) of which the easterly 30’ is open 

on three sides; and an addit ion (24’x48’) located on and at tached to south side of the main baler building 

(Cardboard Room).  The intent  of this RFP is to provide for the design and installat ion of a new insulated 

shell. The plant will remain in operat ion during const ruct ion.  In addit ion to the work provided, an office 

area will need to be provided by the cont ractor for use by the refuse foreman in the form of a work t railer 

or other acceptable form. This work area will need to have telephone and internet  services. 

24



 

III. SCOPE OF WORK

Provide the necessary material, equipment , and labor to perform the following scope of work: 

The following work scope is provided as a minimum guideline and is not  inclusive of all work act ivit ies that  

may be required to provide for the design, demolit ion, and replacement  of all wall and roof purlins, metal 

siding, metal roofing, exterior doors, insulat ion system, and concrete perimeter wall at  the Whitshed Baler 

Facility.  

• Design and const ruct ion must  conform to the 2009 Internat ional Building Code and all other

pert inent  internat ional, state and local codes.

• Building Permit  will be provided by the City of Cordova

• Contractor must  have/ obtain a current  City of Cordova business license.

• Provide an Alaska st ructural engineer stamped design for wall purlins, roof purlins, door

framing, purlin connect ions, purlin brackets/ fasteners, wall/ roof bracing, purlin bracing, and

siding.

• Provide an Alaska structural engineer stamped design for the concrete perimeter wall and

steel reinforcing.

• Demolish all exist ing siding and roofing on baler building and cardboard room.

• Demolish all exist ing wall and roof purlins on baler building.

o Wood framing to remain on cardboard room.

• Install new wall and roof purlins on baler building.

• Install new door/ wall framing for (3) overhead doors, (1) sliding door, and (2) man doors.

o Doors to be replaced with same size doors where exist ing.

• Supply and install (3) new overhead doors, (1) sliding door, and (2) man doors on the baler

building.

• Demolish all exist ing doors on Baler building exterior only! ! !

o Cardboard room exterior sliding doors to remain and be re-sided to match.

• Remove and re-install all exist ing light ing, conduit , cable, ect… as necessary for demolit ion of

exist ing roof purlins.

• Remove and re-install all exist ing elect rical fixtures, conduit , switches, control panels,

dist ribut ion panels, ect .. As necessary to replace exist ing siding and wall purlins.

• Provide any and all temporary elect rical service that may be required to support  normal baler

facility operat ions during const ruct ion.

• Install new insulat ion and metal siding on baler building

o Drape type insulat ion with vapor barrier will be the base bid

o Insulated siding panels will be Alternate #1

o Install per manufactures recommendat ion.

o Provide M anufactures standard warrantee.

o Provide and install all necessary flashings

• Install new insulat ion and metal roofing on baler building and cardboard room.

o Drape type insulat ion with vapor barrier will be the base bid

o Insulated roofing panels will be Alternate #1

o Install per manufactures recommendat ion.

o Provide M anufactures standard warrantee.

o Provide and install all necessary flashings

25



 

o Cardboard room roof does not  require insulat ion, however the t ransit ion point  needs

to be address in the design.

• Install new metal siding on cardboard room walls and sliding doors.

o Install per manufacture recommendat ion.

o Provide manufactures standard warrantee.

o Color and profile to match main baler building

o Provide and install all necessary flashings

• Install a 6”  thick x 4’ tall concrete perimeter wall around the perimeter of the baler building

o Provide an alternate price to install a 6”  thick x 2’ tall concrete perimeter wall on the

east  and west  elevat ions. (the north and south remain 4’ tall) Alternate #2

o The cardboard room already has an exist ing concrete perimeter wall.

• Add two 6”  diameter schedule 40 steel bollards at  the power supply conduit  located on the

NE corner of the baler building.

• Provide the following submit tals for approval prior to procurement .

o Structural design of wall and roof purlins including connect ions and fasteners.

o Structural design of door framing.

o Structural design of siding and wind loading calculat ions.

o Provide flashing design for siding, roofing, and all other related areas requiring

flashing.

o Structural design of concrete wall and reinforcing shop drawings

o Concrete mix design

o Product  data for overhead doors and related hardware and manual openers.

o Product  data for M an door and related hardware.

o Siding product  data and warrantee

o Roofing product  data and warrantee

o Insulat ion product  data and warrantee

o Layout  drawings for siding, girts, and roofing

• The cont ractor will be responsible for hauling all demolished material and const ruct ion debris

to the 17-mile landfill.

o Debris will not  be allowed to build up on site and must be hauled daily.

o There will be no charge for dumping this material.

• Coordinat ion with the Baler facility superintendent is paramount  and all const ruct ion

operat ions/ act ivit ies impact ing normal baler operat ions will need to be coordinated 24 hours

in advance.

o The facility operates M onday thru Friday 7:00am to 3:30pm.

• Contractor to provide office t railer with phone and internet access during any phase of work

where the baler office is impacted.

• Contractor will hold weekly progress meet ings and provide meet ing minutes for approval

within 24 hours of meet ings.

• All const ruct ion must be complete and final payment  requested prior to M ay 30th 2014.

o The project  is funded by a 15 year old grant that is set to expire June 30th 2014.

o Liquidated damages will equal the value of the cont ract  for the first  day past  the final

complet ion date.

• Provide O&M  manuals for the following items:

o M an doors

o Overhead doors

26



 

o Sliding doors

o Siding

o Roofing

• All elect rical work is to be performed by a licensed elect rician.

• RFP reference documents

o RFP 02-14

o R.W Beck and Associates Solid Waste Baler Facility design drawings 1984

o ARM CO Baler Building St ructural Design Drawings

o Sect ion 033-00-cast -in-place concrete

o Sect ion 055000-metal fabricat ions

o Insulat ion Spec part  1-3

o Sect ion 074113.23-insulated metal roof panels-alternate

o Sect ion 074213.13-foamed metal wall panels

o Sect ion 074213.19-insulated metal wall panels-alternate

o Sect ion 076100-sheet  metal roofing

o Sect ion 081113-hollow metal door and frames

o Sect ion 083613-sect ional doors

o Attachment  6

o DBE Forms

o DBE Overview

o Federal DB wage rates

o Pamphlet  600 issue 27

o Sample Const ruct ion agreement

o Wage Compliant  Contract  Addendum

o Baler Building Plan M ark-up

• Project  will be subject  to Tit le 36 of the Alaska Statutes which requires payment  of AKDOL

Filing fees, filing of cert ified payroll with AKDOL, and related report ing.  AKDOL LSS Portal can

be found at ht tps:/ / myalaska.state.ak.us/ certpay/ portal.aspx.

• Project  is also subject  to current  prevailing wage rates (found at

www.labor.state.ak.us/ lss/ pamp600.htm (Pamphlet  No. 600) and www.wdol.gov).  The

applicable wage rates are provided at  Tab IV of the bid packet .

In accordance with 40 C.F.R. Part  33, this project  is subject  to a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

(“ DBE” ) program.  Each cont ractor with whom the City of Cordova enters into a cont ract  for the 

complet ion of this Project  is required to (1) complete the DBE forms found at  Tab III of this Request for 

Proposals packet , and (2) comply with the wage rate requirements set out  in Attachment  6 (Tab II) and 

the applicable wage rate determinat ions (Tab IV).    

Contractor shall possess and keep in force all licenses, business permits and other permits 

required to perform the services of this Agreement .  Work shall be completed no later than 75 days from 

not ice to proceed or M ay 30, 2014 whichever is earlier.  

IV. SUBM ITTAL REQUIREM ENTS

Each Vendor shall submit  two (2) original signed copies of its proposal.  The proposal shall be 

submit ted in the following manner: 

1. Contractor Descript ion.  Provide a descript ion and history of the Contractor emphasizing the

Contractor's resources and expert ise in the area(s) relevant  to this RFP.  In addit ion, ident ify the 

27



 

person(s) who has decision-making authority for the Contractor; and who will be the 

Contractor’s primary contact  person(s) with the City.  

2. Proposals

• Clearly state the total cost  to the City for complet ion of all work.

• Clearly ident ify the alternate cost  to provide insulated wall and roof panels. ALT#1

• Clearly ident ify the alternate cost to pour a 2’ tall perimeter wall on the east  and west

elevat ions. ALT#2

• Provide a detailed work plan and schedule with milestones that  ident ifying how the project

will be completed in a t imely fashion.

• Provide product data for proposed base and alternate siding, roofing, insulat ion, overhead

doors, man doors, sliding doors, and related door hardware.

• Ident ify manufactures warrantee for siding, roofing, insulat ion, doors, and hardware.

• Provide evidence of liability insurance, and worker’s compensat ion insurance if applicable

• As a minimum, proposals shall provide a proposed const ruct ion schedule to meet a

substant ial complet ion of M ay 15, 2014.

V. SELECTION CRITERIA 

Each proposal shall be evaluated based on the following criteria based on the following sect ions 

of Cordova M unicipal Code (CM C): 

1. Total cost  of Proposal to the City (CM C 5.12.120(A));

2. Contractor’s qualificat ions and responsibility (CM C 5.12.170):

a. The skill and experience demonstrated by the bidder in performing cont racts of a

similar nature;

b. The bidder's record for honesty and integrity;

c. The bidder's capacity to perform in terms of facilit ies, equipment , personnel and

financing;

d. The past  and present  compliance by the bidder with laws and ordinances related to

its performance under the cont ract ;

e. The bidder's past  performance under city cont racts. If the bidder has failed in any

material way to perform its obligat ions under any cont ract  with the city, the city

manager may consider the bidder to be not  responsible; and

f. The bidder's past  performance of financial obligat ions to the city. If at  the t ime of

award the bidder is delinquent , overdue or in default  on the payment  of any money,

debt  or liability to the city, the city manager shall consider the bidder not  to be

responsible.

g. Completeness of work plan and schedule.

h. Completeness of product  data.

i. Completeness of warrantee informat ion.

Proposals will be opened at  the front desk in City Hall on M arch 3, 2014 at  approximately 2:05 P.M .  A 

cont ract  may be awarded by City Council on M arch 5th, 2014 if recommended by City M anager. The City 

of Cordova reserves the right  to reject  any and all proposals, to waive technical or legal deficiencies, to 

make such invest igat ion as it  deems necessary to evaluate Contractor's qualificat ions, to accept any 

proposal that  may be deemed in the best  interest  of the City and to negot iate terms and condit ions of any 

proposal leading to acceptance and final execut ion of a cont ract  for services. 

28



City of Cordova 

RFP # 02-14 

Addendum #1 

2/ 15/ 2014 

    The mandatory pre-bid site meet ing was held on 2-14-2014 at 10:00am. The updated bidders list  is 

at tached for your informat ion. A number of quest ions and clarificat ions were generated during the pre-

bid meet ing and are listed below. 

1. Note receipt  of Addendum #1 in your proposal.

2. Baler pit  piping Project  01-14 schedule will overlap RFP 02-14 work schedule and work will

need to be coordinated between cont ractors.

a. COC project  M anager will facilitate coordinat ion.

3. Provide a schedule detailing major act ivit ies and durat ions.

4. The liquidated Damages for the project  will be $2,500/ day.

5. A performance and payment  bond is required.

6. The City will provide submit tal review in no more than 5 business days.

7. The East  end open bay will not  be closed in and it  will remain an open bay. New purlins and

roofing will be required for this area.

8. The exist ing roof vents will not  be replaced.

9. The refuse department  will clear all loose material, dumpsters, and dump boxes from around

the interior and exterior perimeter of the building prior to the start  of const ruct ion.

10. The City of Cordova will provide snow removal on site.

11. The cardboard room fascia and soffit  are to be metal wrapped to match new siding.

12. Insulat ion values for the “ drape”  style base bid insulat ion are as follows:

a. Walls R21

b. Roof R38

13. Updated FY13 DBE forms (at tached)

a. Replaces FY12 DBE forms

14. Updated DB wage determinat ion 2/ 7/ 14 (at tached)

a. Replaces 1/ 17/ 14 DB wage determinat ion

15. Updated DB Requirements FY13 (at tached)

a. Replaces At tachment  6 (DB FY12 DB Requirements)

16. Updated Bidders list  (at tached)

  The End. 

29



Addendum #2

All, 

   Please see the responses to the quest ions from Ron’s General listed below. These quest ions 

and responses (IN RED) will const itute Addendum #2. Please note receipt  of this addendum in 

your RFP proposal.  

Thank You 

Josh Hallquist  

City of Cordova 

Act ing Public Works Director 

From: Ron Nordquist  [mailto:ronsgen@gci.net ]  

Sent: Wednesday, February 19, 2014 12:04 PM  

To: Josh Hallquist  (as PW Director); 'Jerry &  Vicki Blackler'; 'Eagle Contract ing'; 

hconst ruct ionak@gmail.com; 'Bill'; 'James Perry'; 'paul cloyd' 

Cc: wilsonc1@alaska.com; 'Stephanie Bash'; 'Randy Christ ianson'; 'Ivan DeWit t '; Brandon Dahl; 

'Start , Susan E U (DEC)' 

Subject: RE: RFP 02-14 Baler Shell Addendum #1 

Josh:  Some items that  need to be addressed. 

A.  Formed M etal Wall Panels call for Box-Rib.  This is an AEP-SPAN product , and I don't  have a 

matching profile with Varco Pruden.  Are we allowed to subst itute our Panel Rib Style Panel, in 

the same gauge. YES 

B.  The single skin roof panel is specified to be Standing Seam.  I won't  sell that product  for this 

building, because with the wind speed in Cordova, it  will get  blown off the roof.  Especially in the 

open bay port ion.  The wind will work it  loose from the underside, and the roof will 

fail.  St rongly suggest that  you use a standard Panel Rib roof, that is thru fastened.  With the 

4:12 pitch on the exist ing building, there should be no leakage problems.  Plus SSR is more 

expensive. Yes, Thru fastened Standard Panel Rib Roofing will be acceptable. 

C.  Both panel styles are called out to have a 3 coat Fluropolymer paint  system.  This is a special 

order paint  system, and can take up to 8 weeks, to get  the coil "Specially Painted" .  Plus it  costs 

a minimum of $1.50 per sq. ft . more. 

The building is further than 1500 feet  from salt  water, so a convent ional 20 year paint  warranty 

would be granted.  Both the wall and roof would need to be the same color, so that  we don't  

also have to but  12,000 sq.ft . coils, if 2 different  colors are selected, and you want  the 3 coat 

system.  That  is the minimum amount  I can buy, and  avoid buying more coil than what  is 

needed. M anufactures standard paint  systems will be acceptable with a 20 year warrantee. One 

color is acceptable for all roofing and siding. Color to be from manufactures standard color 

pallet .     

D.  The same coil problem would also pertain to the Insulated M etal Panels.  M anufactures 

standard paint  systems will be acceptable with a 20 year warrantee. One color is acceptable for 

all roofing and siding. Color to be from manufactures standard color pallet .     

30



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TO:   Cordova City Council Members  
THRU: City Manager Randy Robertson 
SUBJECT: Citizens Advisory Committee. 
Date:     February 24, 2014 
 
The men and women of the Cordova Police Department are a young, progressive, forward 
thinking organization embedded in a rock solid foundation of personal and professional integrity. 
Our vision is to be an active, open community partner to make Cordova the best place to live, 
work and play in Alaska. 
 
With that in mind, I, as Chief of Cordova Police Department, am establishing a Citizens 
Advisory Committee (CAC), designed to serve as a mentoring organization to the force as well 
as a community sounding board for our citizens.  The role and mission of the CAC is to develop 
and hone an advisory relationship with the undersigned and members of City of Cordova Police 
Department focused along the lines of a Community Oriented Police (COPS) Agency. COPS is a 
nationally recognized policing philosophy that combines traditional aspects of law enforcement 
with proactive prevention initiatives, problem-solving, and community engagement and 
partnerships. The goal of community policing is to bring the police and the public it serves closer 
together to identify and address common concerns. Cities that have actively embraced the COPS 
concepts have shown improvement in addressing the root elements of criminal activity within the 
community.  The Citizens Advisory Council will actively partner with the Police force to assist 
in expanding our network of personal and professional contacts, perform policy reviews and 
consultation, and serve as an ombudsman to Cordova citizens 
 
As of this date, five prominent Cordovans have agreed to participate on this committee.  My 
purpose in writing the Council is to inform them of this initiative and to commend these 
volunteers for their civic mindedness and willingness to improve our community.  
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
George Wintle  
Chief of Police City of Cordova

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of Chief of Police 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 

P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6100 
Fax: (907) 424-6120 
Email: policechief@cityofcordova.net 

Web: www.cityofcordova.net 
 

 

31

mailto:policechief@cityofcordova.net
http://www.cityofcordova.net/


 

 
  
 

CITY CLERK’S REPORT TO COUNCIL 
March 5, 2014 Regular Council Meeting 

Date of Report: February 24-28, 2014 
 

Things I need feedback on or am reporting to Council on: 

• I sent an email explaining this but…I’ll reiterate it here, Resolution 02-14-12 failed at the 02-19-14 meeting 

because the vote was 3-2 and the required vote was “a majority of all the members of the council” which 

means 4 yeas were needed; I have attached charter/code references that help determine when “a majority of all 

of council” is needed 

• I am still advertising for 2 Parks and Rec seats – please talk to your constituents and drum up interest in 

serving on this important City commission 

• I’ll bring up at Pending Agenda this question – what time would you like to have the special meeting on March 

13 to certify the Election – noon or 7pm or something different 
 

Things the Clerk’s Office has been working on: 

• 2014 General Election March 4 – all last minute preparations underway in the Clerk’s office – The Election 

Board, Clerk and Deputy Clerk will be there at 6:30 am to set up and await the voters. 

• I will bring and verbally report the results at the polls at the Match 5, 2014 Regular Meeting. 

• Signed paychecks/other AP checks 

• Prepared agenda and packet for regular mtg on 3-5-14  

• Attended Department Head meetings on February 18 & 25  

• Submitted Sub Res 02-14-10 to the Board of Fish online comment submission system 

• Deputy Clerk is diligently entering all the changes for 2014 tax roll, working closely with the City Assessor on 

changes and updates; approving new and reviewing existing senior citizen exemption applications; assessment 

notices will be mailed on March 7 

• Deputy Clerk is also receiving payments from delinquent notices to 2013 taxpayers who are late on payments 

to the City in preparation for foreclosures – hoping to keep that list very short 

• Conducted research regarding types of votes required for varying Council actions per charter and code – 

attached to this report is a good reference. 

• Sought attorney advice regarding how to handle an incorrect vote count at the February 19 Regular Meeting.  

• Assisted two different families with burial permits and locating gravesites, worked with Public Works to 

ensure locations were accessible 

• Updated cemetery records, map, spreadsheet 

• Assisted finance department on a few resolutions for tonight’s agenda 

 

City of Cordova,  

Office  of the  Cit y Clerk  

Cordova, AK  99574 
602 Railroad Avenue *  PO Box 1210 

Phone:  907.424.6248 

Fax:  907.424.6000 

Cell:  907.253.6248 

E-mail:  cityclerk@cityofcordova.net  

 
32



Code: 
3.12.080 ‐ Meetings—Passage of proposals. 
A majority of  the members of  the council shall constitute a quorum. Any action  the council  is authorized or 
required to take under the Charter or this code may be taken by favorable vote of a majority of the quorum 
except as follows:  
A.  A majority of all members of the council shall be required for final passage of an ordinance, in accordance 
with Article II, § 2‐13 of the Charter;  
B.  A majority of all the members of the council shall be required to adopt a budget and make appropriations 
for the next fiscal year in accordance with Article V, § 5‐4 of the Charter;  
C.    A  majority  of  all  the  members  of  the  council  shall  be  required  for  the  transfer  of  unencumbered 
appropriations in accordance with Article V, § 5‐6 of the Charter;  
D.  An appropriation from the city general reserve fund must be in accordance with Section 5.44.060  
E.   Concurring  vote of  four members  shall be necessary when  the  council  sits  as  a board of  adjustment  in 
accordance with Section 3.40.100  
F.   Vacancies  in  the office of mayor and council membership shall be  filled by majority vote of  the council's 
remaining members in accordance with Article II § 2‐10 of the Charter;  
G.    The  city  manager  shall  be  appointed  or  removed  by  a  vote  of  a  majority  of  all  council  members,  in 
accordance with Article III, § 3‐1 of the Charter;  
H.  A majority of all the members of the council shall be required to create an office or position of employment 
or to incur an expenditure of funds for purposes not specifically included in an approved budget.  
The council shall vote on a roll call vote where a majority of all members  is required, or upon request of any 
council member. The results of all votes shall be entered into the minutes of the meeting.  
 
Charter: 
Section 5‐4. ‐ Budget: Amendment—Adoption—Appropriations. 
The council may insert, strike out, increase or decrease items in the budget, and may otherwise amend it; but 
the proposed expenditures shall never exceed the anticipated revenues therein. The council, by majority vote 
of all its members, not later than the third day before the beginning of the fiscal year, shall adopt the budget 
and make appropriations for such fiscal year. If the council fails to adopt the budget and make appropriations 
on or before that day, the budget, as submitted or as amended, as the case may be, shall go into effect and be 
deemed to have been fully adopted by the council, and the proposed expenditures therein shall become the 
appropriations  for  the  next  fiscal  year.  The  appropriations,  when  made  by  the  council  by  resolution  or 
ordinance separate from the budget document, need not be in as great detail as the proposed expenditures in 
the budget; but appropriations shall never exceed the anticipated revenues in the budget. 
Section 5‐6. ‐ Transfer of appropriation balances. 
Except  as  the  council  by  ordinance may  provide  otherwise,  the  city manager may  transfer  unencumbered 
appropriation balances or parts thereof from any item of appropriation within a department, office or agency 
to any other  item of appropriation,  including new  items, within the same department, office or agency. The 
council,  by motion,  resolution  or  ordinance  passed  by  vote  of  a majority  of  all  its members, may  transfer 
unencumbered appropriation balances or parts thereof  from any  item of appropriation to any other  item of 
appropriation, including new items, whether such other item is within the same department, office or agency. 
 

33



3.12.060 Meetings—Order of business. 

A. The order of business for the regular meetings of the city council shall be as follows, unless the council votes 

to conduct the order of business otherwise:  

1. Call to order; 

2. Pledge of allegiance; 

3. Roll call; 

4. Approval of regular agenda; 

5. Disclosures of conflicts of interest; 

6. Communications and petitions by visitors (ten-minute limit); 

7. Approval of consent calendar; 

8. Approval of minutes; 

9. Consideration of bids; 

10. Reports of officers; 

11. Correspondence; 

12. Ordinances and resolutions; 

13. Unfinished business; 

14. New or miscellaneous business; 

15. Audience participation; 

16. Council comments; 

17. Adjournment. 

B. Communication and Petitions by Visitors At Council Meeting (Ten-minute Limit). The communication and 

petitions by visitors shall be limited to ten minutes. The mayor shall call upon as many individuals as time allows. 

A maximum of three minutes is allowed for each speaker. The clerk shall monitor the time limit. If more than one 

individual desires to address the council on the same matter, it shall be proper for the mayor to request that a 

spokesman be chosen to address the council in order to avoid repetition. Any written material presented at this 

time shall be given to the clerk for distribution. The ten-minute time limit may be extended with the unanimous 

consensus of the council. The mayor or any councilmember may comment to communications and/or petitions 

given by visitors during this period. If there is no individual desiring to offer public communications and/or 

petitions, the council shall immediately proceed with the next agenda item.  

C. Approval of Regular Meeting Agenda. With no objection from council, items may be added or removed from 

the agenda by councilmembers, mayor, city manager or city clerk at the time of approval of regular meeting 

agenda. If a councilmember objects to the addition or removal of an item to or from the regular agenda, a vote 

shall be required for action to be taken.  

D. Approval of Consent Calendar. Those items for council agenda which are considered routine by the city 

manager and city clerk shall be listed under the consent calendar. Any councilmember, mayor, city manager or 

city clerk may recommend an item to be added to the consent calendar or removed and placed in the regular 

agenda for consideration. A majority vote of the council shall be required for the approval of the consent calendar. 

Items approved in the consent calendar shall appear in the council minutes as if acted upon individually.  

E. Approval of Minutes. Unless the reading of previous council minutes is requested by a majority of the council, 

such minutes may be approved with corrections or additions without a reading provided that the clerk has 

furnished each councilmember with a copy thereof. 
 

34



Susan Bourgeois

From: psks@ctcak.net
Sent: Tuesday, February 18, 2014 12:34 PM
To: Mayor
Cc: Susan Bourgeois; George Wintle; Michael Hicks; tkeel@cordovasd.org; Linda Crider Crider; Karen 

Swartzbart; Karen Swartzbart
Subject: Whitshed Road-Speed Reduction 35 to 25 to Orca Inlet Recreational Area 
Attachments: 25 to Ball field(3).doc; ATT00001.htm; Final 25 on Whitshed.doc; ATT00002.htm; DOT 35 to 25 

Denied.pdf; ATT00003.htm

Mayor Kacsh, 
 
In October 2013,  Northern Region Traffic and Safety denied the  City of Cordova , Alaska Resolution 03-10-14, to 
reduce the speed limit from 35 mph to 25 mph on Whitshed Road from Copper River Highway to Orca Inlet Drive.  
 
As you may recall there are numerous community members who spoke out in favor of this very important safety 
issue;  local residents, Cordova Police Department, Alaska State Troopers, Cordova Superintendent, Cordova DOT, 
Cordova Parks and Recreation, Director of Public Works, Executive Director of Native Village of Eyak, Cordova 
Little League, Safe Routes to School, and Alaska Association of Student Government - passing a Resolution Increase 
Safety on Whitshed  Road.  
 
As there are new City Council members and this issues has been going on for four years since the original request was 
made to Northern DOT  I have attached 3 Documents to refresh memories  and update new members.   
 
Per Attached: 
 
1.)   March 17, 2010- A letter from  Karen Swartzbart wrote to Cordova City Council bringing to their attention my 
concerns for the safety of Cordova residents traveling to the then new Orca Inlet Recreational Area.  
         Cordova City Council Passed Resolution 03-10-14, to recommend  Northern DOT to  reduce the speed limit 
from 35 mph to 25 mph on March 31, 2010.       
 
2. ) January 19, 2011-  As Northern DOT were not committing to a Speed Study at any time soon, Karen Swartzbart 
wrote an additional letters to help move the process along and to ask for a yellow advisory                       speed sign of 
25 mph during base ball season, which was also denied.  Please note all the community members who signed this 
letter of support.  
  
3.)  October 23, 2013-  Northern Region Traffic and Safety Engineer Pam Golden sent letter to Cordova City Council 
denying speed limit change from 35 mph to 25 mph on Whitshed Road to Orca Inlet Recreational   Area.  Please take 
notice of their data set dated September 10-11, 2012.  At 1,624 observations, 85 % of the traffic went 45 mph, while 
the Median Pace was 40 mph, clearly exceeding the EXISTING speed limit of 35 mph, proving the point that people 
will go 5 to 10 miles over the speed limit if inclined to do so. Statistics point out that a crash of a motor vehicle and a 
pedestrian or cyclist at 45 mph speed results in a fatality.  At 25 mph there is a much greater chance of recovery from 
injury.    It seems to me that Northern DOT is missing the point that Cordova is trying to calm the traffic to our 
recreational area. 
 
 
 

35



City Council of Cordova, Alaska                                                3/17/2010                
 
Dear Councilmen,   
 
I am writing about my concerns about safe access for all Cordova residents and visitors to 
the new ball field on Whitshed Road.  Since the ball field opened in 2008 there has been 
increased bicycle and pedestrian traffic, especially children.  
 
For 2010, the Parks and Recreation Dept. have made available a new multi use soccer, 
volleyball, kickball, football field that can also be used for festivals, and community events. 
Their long-range plan is to have a lighted trail around the perimeter for a running and ski 
track. In addition, there will be water, snack shack, and restrooms. This field could be a 
year round destination.  
 
A few Whitshed Road residents feel that 25 mph is too slow for this ½ mile section that 
goes past the ball field to Orca Inlet Drive (Public Works building) to get to their final 
destinations.  
 
This is what I did: I timed myself using a stopwatch going 25 mph and 35 mph starting at 
the first 35 mph sign on Whitshed coming from the Cooper River Highway to Orca Inlet 
Drive, which is exactly ½ mile.  
 
Here are my results: 
                                    25 mph                    35 mph  
                                   1:20 min                   1:06 min - Difference of 14 seconds 
                                   1:24 min                   1:03 min - Difference of 21 seconds     
                                   1:24 min                   1:05 min – Difference of 19 seconds 
 
Also of Interest: 
 
Pedestrian Injuries at Impact: (National Highway Traffic Safety Admin.) 
                40 mph                              20 mph   
                85 % Chance of Death       5% Chance of Death 
 

To arrive at your final destination approximately 14 to 21 
seconds later seems a small inconvenience for a huge impact on 
human life and safety.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



Lets talk about road conditions and hazards on this ½ mile section. 
 
CONDITIONS:  This is a narrow section of Whitshed Road with no shoulder and a cliff on 
one side and drainage ditches and rock wall on the other. There are no pullouts or safe 
places to get off the road. Then there are the blind corners before and after the ball field 
on Whitshed Road. 
 
TRAFFIC: Within a 1/8 of a mile past the ball field we have the Public Works building, a 
working gavel pit, and the Baler Facility. All these facilities require and use heavy 
industrial vehicles to do business running back and forth in front of the ball field and we 
are all well aware of the increased summer traffic going to the boat yard.  
A new road development at the end of Hartney Bay Road will further increase traffic, 
including gravel trucks, construction crews and new homeowners.  
 
REALITY: The reality of posting a 25 mph sign will actually result in drivers going up to 30 
mph, because as we all know we are willing to risk going 1 to 5 mph over the speed limit. 
So in the end I hope to have drivers going 30 mph, but it won’t be 40+ mph like most all of 
us have done. (We get distracted, stressed, in a hurry, late!!!  I so understand that). 
 
THE BOTTOM LINE:  We as a community must recognize this ½ mile section on 
Whitshed Road as a Shared Road used by many user groups. Reducing the speed from 
35 mph to 25 mph is the prudent thing to do making it safer for all of us.  
 
We recently received a $523,000 grant through Safe Routes to School, $185,000 will be 
used to design a bike path to the new field. This path will take time and money to build, so 
lowering the speed is action we can take immediately. 
  
GOAL: A letter of support from the Cordova City Council to reduce the speed from 35 
mph to 25 mph on this ½ mile section on Whitshed Road to be submitted to the State 
Department of Transportation as soon as possible. 
 
Thank you for your consideration on this vital issue.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Karen Swartzbart, Whitshed Road resident 
 

37



Alaska Dept. of Transportation and Public Facilities                                  1/19/2011 
Northern Region 
Colleen Ackiss, Northern Traffic and Safety Chief 
(907) 451-5359 
Re: Speed limit reduction from 35 mph to 25 mph on Whitshed Road, Cordova 
 
Dear Colleen,  
 
This is a summery of our concerns with the speed limit of 35 mph on Whitshed road 
between the Copper River Highway and our new recreational area.  
 
In 2008, Cordova built Orca Inlet Recreational Area, a multiuse park on the State owned 
Whitshed Road. Currently the speed limit along Whitshed Road to the park is 35 mph.  
There is widespread support from the community to reduce the speed limit to 25 mph, for 
a distance of .8 mile from the Copper River Highway to the City’s RV campground and 
recreational park. This park is now part of the school districts athletic program and 
students are required to walk from the school to the park.  
 
At approximately one and one half mile out Whitshed road there is an industrial area 
including Cordova’s public works shop, a working gravel pit, baler plant, Alpine Diesel 
Shop, and boat storage facility.  In addition, construction of a new subdivision is adding 
increased traffic. All these facilities require heavy industrial vehicles passing by the park 
to do their business. 
 
The road to the park is a narrow road with no shoulders, steep drop offs, and six blind 
curves. While the posted speed is 35 mph, many vehicles are going 40 mph or more. 
Even at 35 mph, there is little margin of error along the winding blind curves when a 
vehicle is passing a pedestrian or bicyclist, and meets a vehicle coming from the opposite 
direction.  The road is too narrow to accommodate two vehicles and a pedestrian.  
 
Recognizing that DOT desires adherence to their policies for determining speed limit 
postings, Cordova is asking the Department to prioritize a speed study and community 
safety evaluation along Whitshed Road for early spring of 2011.  Until the Department 
can complete the study, Cordova would like to see a yellow advisory speed sign of 25 
mph along the first mile of Whitshed Road to Orca Inlet Drive for the start up of baseball 
season on April 15th, 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

38



                                                 Page 2  
Cordova is actively seeking a multiuse separated pathway that could be constructed along 
Whitshed to the park. Last fall we submitted a Tiger II planning grant application and 
also a nomination for a Whitshed Road multiuse pathway project to the STIP.  The City 
Council of Cordova and the Native Village of Eyak together agreed to supply the 9.3% 
match and the City agreed to accept maintenance if the State would consider helping us 
build it.  The Native Village of Eyak is also very supportive and looking into the 
possibilities of including the project in their IRR designations under “trails” category.   
   
Cordova has shown proactive leadership and expressed widespread support concerning 
this important safety issue.  This speed limit reduction has the unanimous written support 
from the Cordova DOT, Cordova City Council, Cordova School District, Cordova City 
Police, Cordova Parks and Recreation, Cordova Safe Routes to School, and Alaska State 
Troopers. Numerous Cordova residents testified at a city council meeting held to discuss 
the STIP nomination and are passionate about this safety issue.  We have contacted you 
numerous times over the past year about this issue. 
  
 It would be highly irresponsible for AKDOT to let this dangerous and potentially fatal 
situation to continue. The City of Cordova is in opposition to the situation being allowed 
to continue.  This issue is not something Cordova can ignore and we plan to continue to 
pursue it.  We hope that the Department can authorize an advisory speed limit sign and 
make plans for the required speed study in the near future.  
 
We are looking forward to the conference call with you to discuss this further scheduled 
for Friday January 28, 2011 at 10:00 in Prince William Sound Aquaculture conference 
room. Please call (907) 424-4038 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 Jack Stevenson, AKDOT, Cordova                         
 Mike Hicks,  Alaska State Troopers 
 Robert Baty, Cordova Police Chief                     
 Dave Reggiani, Vice Mayor Cordova 
 Mark Lynch, Cordova City Manager 
Angela Arnold, Executive Director, Native Village of Eyak 
Jim Nygaard, Cordova School District Superintendent 
Susan Herschleb, Cordova  Director of Parks and Recreation        
Tom Cohenour, Cordova Director of Public Works                                
Karen Swartzbart, Safe Route to School 
 
Cc: Jeff Jeffers, P.E.                           James S. “Steve” Titus, P.E. 
      Commissioner Marc Luiken         AK. State House Representative  Bill Thomas 

 

39



40



41



42



43



MEMO, City of Cordova 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
Through: Randy Robertson, City Manager 
 
From:   Jon K. Stavig, Finance Director 
 
Date:  26 February 2014  
 
RE:  Resolutions for City Road Initiatives for 2014 
 
Following are two resolutions pertaining to the discussion from the preceding Council Meeting of 
February 19 concerning proposed road improvement initiatives for 2014. 
 

• Resolution #03-14-14 
Budget Amendment to transfer funds from FY ’14 lines that are not 
encumbered or expected to be spent in 2014.  This will fund the 
acquisition of two tanks of chip seal oil. 
 
 

• Resolution #03-14-15 
Budget Amendment to recognize the receipt of reimbursement funds from 
Dept. of Homeland Security and to appropriate $120,000.00 of those funds 
to fund the acquisition of a piece of asphalt patching equipment, double 
drum roller and one tank of chip seal oil. 
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

Jon K Stavig, Finance Director 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44



 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 03-14-14 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT TO THE FY14 BUDGET AND AUTHORIZING THE 
TRANSFER OF PRIOR APPROPRIATIONS IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000 FOR THE 

PURCHASE OF CHIP SEAL OIL 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska has adopted the City 
Operating Budget and appropriated funds for FY 14 for the period of January 1, 2014 to 
December 31, 2014; and 

  
WHEREAS, the City has identified funds that have been previously appropriated which 

are neither encumbered nor expected to be spent by year end; and 
 
WHEREAS, these funds are located in the budget as follows: Line #401-443-51005 in 

the amount of $15,000, Line #101-601-50000 and Line #101-601-50120 in an amount totaling 
$20,000 and Line #101-421-55050 in the amount of $15,000 for a total of $50,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, the funds will be transferred to Line #410-390-49999 to fund the purchase 

of chip seal oil for the 2014 season.  
 

 NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, that the amendment of the FY14 Budget and the transfer of prior appropriations in the 
amount of $50,000 for the purchase of chip seal oil are hereby authorized. 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 5th DAY OF MARCH, 2014 
        
             
       ________________________________ 
       James Kacsh, Mayor  
 

     Attest: 
           

       ________________________________ 
       Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 

 
 

 

45



 

CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION 03-14-15 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY CORDOVA, ALASKA AMENDING 
THE FY 14 BUDGET TO RECOGNIZE THE RECEIPT OF $300,645.39 FROM THE 

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY TO REIMBURSE THE CITY FOR EXPENSES 
INCURRED DURING THE 2012 SNOW EVENT AND TO APPROPRIATE $120,000 OF THOSE 
FUNDS TO FUND THE ACQUISITION OF A PIECE OF ASPHALT PATCHING EQUIPMENT, 

A DOUBLE DRUM ROLLER AND ONE TANK OF CHIP SEAL OIL TO FULFILL THE 
CITY’S ROAD MAINTENANCE PROGRAM FOR 2014 

 
WHEREAS, in 2012 there was a significant snow event that caused the City leaders of Cordova to 

spend several hundreds of thousands of dollars to remove snow and support the citizens of this 
community; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Office of Homeland Security for the State of Alaska has advised that 

approximately $300,000 has been earmarked to reimburse the City for said expenditures; and  
 
WHEREAS, in the budget meetings in preparation for the FY14 City Budget, discussions amongst 

the City Council centered on not funding any chip and seal initiative in FY14 until better confidence was 
secured regarding the snow funding that might be secured from the state; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Raytech Dual Axle Mounted Reclaimer is a time-tested, proven piece of  

equipment that will provide the City with road repair and patching capability it currently does not possess, 
especially in inclement weather; and   

 
WHEREAS, the staff of the City recommends that the City Council appropriate $120,000 from 

snow event money prior to the remainder being placed in the City’s General Fund account. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska 

does hereby amend the FY14 budget to recognize the receipt of $300,645.39 from the Department of 
Homeland Security to reimburse the City from expenses incurred during the 2012 snow event and to 
appropriate $120,000 of those funds to fund the acquisition of a piece of asphalt patching equipment, a 
double drum roller and one tank of Chip Seal Oil to fulfill the City’s road maintenance program for 2014. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 5th DAY OF MARCH, 2014 
        
  
        ________________________________ 
        James Kacsh, Mayor  
 

      Attest: 
 

      ________________________________ 
        Susan Bourgeois, CMC, City Clerk 
 

46



Activities Location Description of Activity days

# of 

people 

Hour

s per 

day

Total 

Hours

Equipmen

t rental Budgeted/funding Ordered Type 

Finish Upper Council council to ski hill drainage

Alley to Cheshire catchments 

and culverts 10 2 8 160

Yes- 

excavator 

with 

hammer Streets Maintenance Purchased 2013 Drainage Project

Railroad Avenue puddle below Adams ROW 

Place culvert through 

Thomas Property to drain 

low spot on Railroad Ave 4 2 8 64 no Streets Maintenance Purchased 2013 Drainage Project

7th Street 

capture Coast Guard housing 

water Two catchments and culvert 3 2 8 48 no Streets Maintenance Purchased 2013 Drainage Project

Drainage at AML

corner of Sorrel and 

Sweetbrier place catchment and culvert 2 2 8 32 no Streets Maintenance Purchased 2013 Drainage Project

Cedar Street

placing catchment and 

Culvert 3 2 8 48 no Streets Maintenance Purchased 2013 Drainage Project

Spruce Street placing catchment 3 2 8 48 no Streets Maintenance Purchased 2013 Drainage Project

Prince William Marina state 3 catchment and culvert 5 2 8 80 no Streets Maintenance Purchased 2013 Drainage Project

8th Street developing plan 3 2 8 48 no Streets Maintenance Purchased 2013 Drainage Project

Highland Drive 

clean and reroute ditches, 

place culvert 5 2 8 80 no Streets Maintenance Purchased 2013 Drainage Project

Eccles Estates clean the ditch 2 2 8 32 no Streets Maintenance Purchased 2013 Drainage Project

Second Street drainage 

 address the lack of storm 

drains

y  p 

drainage plan and  

implement  drainage 

improvements  where 10 4 8 320 no Streets Maintenance /CIP No Drainage Project

Street Painting City wide

Crosswalks, curbs, schools, 

harbor handicap, parking 21 2 8 336 no Streets Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Snow Removal Nov, 15 thru March, City wide

General Snow Clearing and 

sanding 72 4 8 2304 no Snow Removal N/A Maintenance

Signs city wide repair, maintain and replace 24 1 8 192 no Streets Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Right of way maintenance city wide

brush cutting and debris 

clean up-through year 30 2 8 480 no Streets Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Spring Street sweeping City Wide Initial Cleaning in spring 15 2 8 240

Rent add 

sweeper Streets Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Spring Street washing & Hosing City Wide Initial Cleaning in spring 14 2 8 224 no Streets Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Spring Drain Cleaning City Wide Initial Cleaning in spring 14 2 8 224 no Streets Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Filling pot holes city wide

filling potholes-year around 

summer 2xweek, winter 2 

days month 60 2 8 960

New Ray-

Tech 

Patching Streets Maintenance

Pending City 

Council 

Approval Maintenance

Weekly Street sweeping City Wide 

Regular street sweeping  2 

days a week for summer 

(Approximately May 15 - 25 1 8 200 no Streets Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Weekly Grading City wide 

Regular graded roads  2 days 

a week for summer 

(Approximately May 15 - 25 1 8 200 no Streets Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Weekly Drain Cleaning City Wide

as needed estimating once a 

month  for summer 4 2 8 64 no Streets Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Burn Pile Daily New England Cannery Road

Clean and push back debris 

/haul ash 52 2 4 416 no Streets Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Grading and finishing Baler finishing leveling gravel area 2 2 8 32 no Streets Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Grave preparation City Cemetery 

maintenance & grave 

precreation 6 2 8 96 no Cemetery Maintenance N/A Community Service

Daily Maintenance of Vehicles & 

Equipment shop

cleaning and checking of 

vehicles and equipment  

daily 260 4 0.5 520 no Streets Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Assisting other Departments City Wide

Water/Sewer Parks and Rec  

Estimating number of days - 

6 days a month 30 2 8 480

Project 

Dependent Streets Maintenance N/A Emergency 

Maintain City Fleet Equipment Shop

Maintance of All city 

equipment and vehicles 260 2 8 4160 no Equipment Maintenance N/A Maintenance

Lower Adams ROW by Pool 

Grade, build stairs, 

replace/fix guard rails /plant 

roses 10 2 8 160 no no no Beatification Project

Snow dump behind library behind museum/library 

Line back dirt bank with 

gabions 15 4 8 480

Excavator/C

rane no no Beatification Project

reluctant Snow dump area 

corner of Council and 

railroad

Cleanup after snow melt, 

trash can, bench maybe 2 2 8 32 no no no Beatification Project

Trusses Area Area below  trusses fence,

 level underneath and 

potentially put container; 

inside fence;  fence 

perimeter of trusses 4 2 8 64 no no no Beatification Project

Tank #1

prep, placement and clean 

up Chip seal 10 4 8 320 no Council to Approve funding level Order by 5-15-14 Maintenance

Tank #2

prep, placement and clean 

up Chip seal 10 4 8 320 no Council to Approve funding level Order by 5-15-14 Maintenance

Tank #3

prep, placement and clean 

up Chip seal 10 4 8 320 no Council to Approve funding level Order by 5-15-14 Maintenance

Tank #4

prep, placement and clean 

up Chip seal 10 4 8 320 no Council to Approve funding level Order by 5-15-14 Maintenance

Total Man Hours Planned 14104

Total Man Hours Avalible 12640

Schedule of 2014 Work 

Storm Drainage Projects

Annual, weekly, daily  Activities

Beatification Projects

Chip Seal Maintenance

47



Location Feet 1 pass 2 passes 3 passes 4 passes 5 passes Total Running total 
Pass is defined  

as a lane width 

18000 Total Feet in a tank

*Upper Council 530 2650 2650 15350

*3rd Street 290 1450 1450 13900

Upper Davis 500 1000 1000 12900

Railroad F&G to North to CR Hwy 1990 3980 3980 8920

Sorrell 825 1650 1650 7270
Cost of one tank 

$25,000 

Jim Poor 1500 3000 3000 4270

Ski hill Mews to Ski hill parking 1900 3800 3800 470

18000

6 & 7 and Adams 900 1800 1800 16200

8th 300 600 600 15600

Birch 400 800 800 14800

Spruce 450 900 900 13900

Center Drive 1200 2400 2400 11500
Cost of two tanks  

$50,000 

Whiskey Ridge 2000 4000 4000 7500

Orca Inlet 950 1900 1900 5600

Saddle Point 2100 4200 4200 1400

PW Marina 850 850 850 550

18000

Kimmick Way 750 1500 1500 16500

Mt Eccles Estates 650 1300 1300 15200

4.5 Mile 650 650 650 14550
Cost of three  tanks  

$75,000 

Olsen Street 6 mile 600 1200 1200 13350

BlackSheep Drive 700 700 700 12650

Behind High School 2500 5000 5000 7650

Railroad ROW 1005 2010 2010 5640

5th 400 800 800 4840

Observation 250 500 500 4340

Water Street 650 1300 1300 3040

Power Plant Road 650 1300 1300 1740

2nd Council to Browning 450 900 900 840

Harbor Loop 1405 18000

Eyak Drive  6.5 3100 2810 2810 15190
Cost of four   tanks  

$100,000 

Highland 650 6200 6200 8990

1300 1300 7690

Prioritize chip seal plan     

48



/0 0.5 10.25

Miles

o ,  t h r e e ,  o r  f o u r  t a n k s  o f  o i l .o ,  t h r e e ,  o r  f o u r  t a n k s  o f  o i l .

Tank One 

Roads

Ski Hill 

Whiskey
 Ridge

Saddle 
Point

6 and 
6.5 Mile Area

4.5 Mile

South
 Fill

North 
Fill

R o a d s  b y  p r i o r i t y  t h a t  c o u l d  b e  c h i p  s e a l e d  R o a d s  b y  p r i o r i t y  t h a t  c o u l d  b e  c h i p  s e a l e d  

w i t h  O n e  T a n k  o f  O i lw i t h  O n e  T a n k  o f  O i l

49



/0 0.5 10.25

Miles

o ,  t h r e e ,  o r  f o u r  t a n k s  o f  o i l .o ,  t h r e e ,  o r  f o u r  t a n k s  o f  o i l .

Tank One 

Tank Two

Roads

Ski Hill 

Whiskey
 Ridge

Saddle 
Point

6 and 
6.5 Mile Area

4.5 Mile

South
 Fill

North 
Fill

R o a d s  b y  p r i o r i t y  t h a t  c o u l d  b e  c h i p  s e a l e d  R o a d s  b y  p r i o r i t y  t h a t  c o u l d  b e  c h i p  s e a l e d  

w i t h  T w o T a n k s  o f  O i lw i t h  T w o T a n k s  o f  O i l

50



/0 0.5 10.25

Miles

R o a d s  b y  p r i o r i t y  t h a t  c o u l d  b e  c h i p  s e a l e d  R o a d s  b y  p r i o r i t y  t h a t  c o u l d  b e  c h i p  s e a l e d  

w i t h  t h r e e  t a n k s  o f  o i l .w i t h  t h r e e  t a n k s  o f  o i l .

Tank One 

Tank Two

Tank Three

Roads

Ski Hill 

Whiskey
 Ridge

Saddle 
Point

6 and 
6.5 Mile Area

4.5 Mile

South
 Fill

North 
Fill

R o a d s  a n d  p a r k i n g  a r e a s  b y  p r i o r i t y  t h a t  c o u l d  b e  c h i p  R o a d s  a n d  p a r k i n g  a r e a s  b y  p r i o r i t y  t h a t  c o u l d  b e  c h i p  

w i t h  T h r e e T a n k s  o f  O i lw i t h  T h r e e T a n k s  o f  O i l

51



/0 0.5 10.25

Miles

R o a d s  a n d  p a r k i n g  a r e a s   b y  p r i o r i t y  t h a t  c o u l d  b e  c h i p  s e a l e d  R o a d s  a n d  p a r k i n g  a r e a s   b y  p r i o r i t y  t h a t  c o u l d  b e  c h i p  s e a l e d  

w i t h  4  Ta n k s  o f  O i l .w i t h  4  Ta n k s  o f  O i l .

Tank One 

Tank Two

Tank Three

Tank Four 

Roads

Ski Hill 

Whiskey
 Ridge

Saddle 
Point

6 and 
6.5 Mile Area

4.5 Mile

South
 Fill

North 
Fill

w i t h  T h r e e T a n k s  o f  O i lw i t h  T h r e e T a n k s  o f  O i l

52



Ray-Tech Infared 4-Ton Combination Reclaimer & Pavement Heater W/ 

Propane Cylinders and Arrow Board (lighted warning sign) $63,500.75

Shipping From New Hampshire to CDV $7,455.50

Wacker Neuson Double Drum Roller RD12A-90 W/Shipping $22,000.00

Manufactures Training on Ray-Tech 4-Ton Combo $1,500.00

Total Cost $94,456.25

Cost Estimate for Asphalt Patching System

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



Pavement  Repair in Cordova 

By Bill Howard 

History: 

In 1986 the City of Cordova purchased a portable asphalt  recycler to repair potholes and st reet 

openings. Over the years this machine was christened Lit t le Willy by the st reets crew.  

The process to repair potholes using lit t le Willie is a two part  process. The first  part  of the 

process is to prepare the pothole. This prep process begins by squaring off the hole and cleaning loose 

debris then compact ing.  This typically involves 2 men, a pick-up, shovels, picks and cutoff saw. The next  

step is to place the asphalt  in the prepared hole and compact  it . This act ivity involves 2 men and lit t le 

Willy. Using lit t le Willy involves heat ing up the machine using propane, loading up the hopper with used 

asphalt  let t ing it  heat  and mix to around 350 degrees, then dumping the mix (3-4 wheelbarrows full 

equals 1 batch) into the prepared hole, raking it  out , compact ing, moving to the next  hole, and/ or 

mixing another batch which takes 30 minutes to an hour. The plus side is the used asphalt  is free so our 

cost is labor and fuel. Down side is that  it  is labor intensive and you need at  least 65-75 degree 

temperature to make a good patch.  

This system has worked well for a lot  of years, however it  has become old technology. About  10 

years ago a public works director thought  it  was taking too much t ime so He t ried to auct ion off Lit t le 

Willy. Nobody bought  the machine so it  sat  out  to the land fill for several years, in the meant ime he 

ordered in some cold mix asphalt  and we t ried that  for several summers without  much luck. The Patch 

would blow out  each t ime it  rained. Which was about  like filling the potholes with road topping only 

much more expensive with buying the mix and then having it  shipped here.  After a couple years we 

resurrected Lit t le Willy and have been using him ever since.  

 

Today: 

We now get  to the heart  of the problem; The paved city st reets in Cordova are at  least  20 years 

old and as a result  are get t ing down to less than an inch thick in many places and many are becoming 

deeply rut ted (Harbor Loop and Railroad). We cont inue to experience more potholes each year as the 

asphalt  loses thickness and st rength. Re-paving the roads is the ult imate solut ion, and that  solut ion is 

current ly in the planning and funding phase, however the cost to do so is large and even after re-paving 

we will st ill need to maintain them. 10 years ago we would fire Lit t le Willy up for a week maybe once in 

the spring and once in the fall, and make a special patch for ut ility road crossings once in a while. This 

past  summer we mixed over forty yards of used asphalt  patching well over 100 potholes…..with at  least  

that  many that  didn’t  get  patched. We wore out  the cast  mixing paddles on Lit t le Willy and parts are no 

longer manufactured. At  this point  we need to have some new paddles custom fabricated or find a new 

way to repair our aging asphalt  roads.  

 

66



Future:  

Faced with the realit ies of aging asphalt  roads &  patching equipment  coupled with an ever 

increasing number of potholes and damaged roads we have spent considerable t ime researching what  

would best  fit  our needs. We have ident ified the Ray-Tech Infrared 4-Ton Combinat ion Reclaimer and 

Pavement  heater with a double drum roller as the best  fit  for Cordova. The major advantages of this 

system over our exist ing system are as follows: 

1. No cold Joints 

a. The machine mends the asphalt  with no seams, it  literally melts it  all back 

together.  

2. Longer last ing patches as a result  of no cold joints.  

3. Labor/ t ime savings  

a. Saw cut t ing of asphalt  not  required for patching prep. 

b. 3 man crew ~VS~ 4 man crew  

4. The Infrared heater can be used down to zero degrees with good results. So we can 

patch virtually year round.   

5. High efficiency reclaimer use less propane than lit t le Willie. 

6. 4-Ton capacity reclaimer hopper allowing more patches per load.  

7. Permanent repair of ut ility cuts.  

8. M anhole cover elevat ion adjustment and repair.  

9. Water Valve adjustment and repair.  

10. Rut  repair  

11. Crack Repair 

12. Shoulder Repair 

13. Birdbath Repair 

 

 

 

67



MEMO, City of Cordova 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
Through: Randy Robertson, City Manager 
 
From:   Jon K. Stavig, Finance Director 
 
Date:  26 February 2014  
 
RE:  Agreement to Provide Audit Services --BDO 
 
The following letter which I received is an agreement to provide audit services for the City of Cordova 
for FY 13. The City’s auditor Mikunda,Cottrell & Co., Inc. now known as BDO has been the City’s 
auditing company for over the past 20 years. 
 
Looks like this information was brought before Council in New Business in preceding years.  The 
agreement needs to be executed by the City Manager and City Finance Director and returned to BDO. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

Jon K Stavig, Finance Director 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

68



 
 

 
 

3601 C Street, Suite 600 
Anchorage, AK 99503 
 

Tel:  907-278-8878 
Fax:  907-278-5779 
www.bdo.com 
 

 
February 11, 2014 
 
City of Cordova 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, AK  99574 
 
 
Attn:  Jon Stavig, Finance Director 
 
 

Agreement to Provide Services 
 
This agreement to provide services (the “Agreement”) is intended to describe the nature and scope 
of our services. 
 
Objective and Scope of the Audit 
 
As agreed, BDO USA, LLP (“BDO” or “we”) will audit the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information, including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
basic financial statements, of City of Cordova (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2013. 
 
Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required 
supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) and 
budgetary schedules, to supplement the City’s basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. It is the City’s 
intent to not present the required MD&A. 
 
As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the City’s RSI, other than the 
MD&A, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance.  

 
Also, we have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that 
accompanies the City’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary 
information to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and will provide an opinion on it in relation to 
the financial statements as a whole:  
 

69



City of Cordova 
February 11, 2014 

Page 2 

1. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
2. Schedule of State Financial Assistance 
3. Combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules 

 
Responsibilities of BDO 
 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. Our work will be based primarily upon selected tests of evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and, therefore, will not include a detailed 
check of all of City of Cordova’s transactions for the period. Because of the inherent limitations of 
an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an unavoidable risk that some 
material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is properly planned and 
performed in accordance with GAAS. 
 
Our audit will also be conducted in accordance with the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the Single 
Audit Act Amendments of 1996; the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, and the provisions of the State 
of Alaska Single Audit Guide and Compliance Supplement for State Single Audits (State Audit Guide) 
and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of major program(s) in accordance with 
OMB Circular A-133 and the State Audit Guide, and other procedures we consider necessary to enable 
us to express such an opinion and to render the required reports. OMB Circular A-133 and the State 
Audit Guide require that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the auditee has complied with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of 
contracts and agreements applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of the 
applicable procedures described in the OMB’s compliance supplement and the state audit guide for 
the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the 
City of Cordova’s major programs. As required by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, OMB 
Circular A-133, and the State Audit Guide, our audit will include tests of transactions related to 
major federal and state award programs for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the 
provisions of contracts and agreements. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an 
opinion on the City of Cordova’s compliance with requirements applicable to major programs in our 
report on compliance issued pursuant to OMB Circular A-133 and the State Audit Guide. 
 
Also, an audit is not designed to detect errors or fraud or violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that are immaterial to the financial statements or to major programs. However, we will 
inform you of any material errors or fraud that come to our attention. We will also inform you of 
possible illegal acts that come to our attention unless they are clearly inconsequential. We will also 
include such matters in the reports required for a Single Audit. In addition, during the course of our 
audit, financial statement misstatements may be identified, either through our audit procedures or 
through communication by your employees to us, and we will bring these misstatements to your 
attention as proposed adjustments. At the conclusion of our engagement we will communicate to 
those charged with governance (as defined below) all uncorrected misstatements. 
 

70



City of Cordova 
February 11, 2014 

Page 3 

The term “those charged with governance” is defined as the person(s) with responsibility for 
overseeing the strategic direction of the City of Cordova and obligations related to the 
accountability of the City, including overseeing the financial reporting process. For the City of 
Cordova, we agree that the city council meets that definition. 
 
In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances and to evaluate compliance with requirements applicable to major programs, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control. However, we will communicate to you and 
those charged with governance in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements we identify during 
our audit. We will also inform you of other matters involving internal control, if any, as required by 
OMB Circular A-133 and the State Audit Guide. 
 
Our responsibility also includes reporting on the City of Cordova’s: 
 

 Internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with laws, regulations, 
and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
material effect on the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 

 Internal control related to major programs and issuance of an opinion on whether the City of 
Cordova complied with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant 
agreements that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Audit Guide.  

 
We will perform test of controls, as required by OMB Circular A-133 and the State Audit Guide, to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to 
preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each of 
the City’s major federal and state award programs. However, our tests will be less in scope than 
would be necessary to render an opinion on these controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be 
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to OMB Circular A-133 or the State Audit 
Guide.  
 
We are also responsible for communicating with those charged with governance what our 
responsibilities are under GAAS, an overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, and 
significant findings from the audit.  
 
At your request, we will not audit the financial statements of Cordova Community Medical Center 
(CCMC).  You have engaged Elgee Rehfeld Mertz, LLP (ERM) (the “component auditors”) to perform 
the audit of CCMC, and have arranged for them to furnish us with their report on the audit of its 
financial statements. To ensure those financial statements will be in form and detail suitable for 
inclusion in the financial statements and the component auditor’s report will be in form and detail 
suitable for us to refer to in our report on the financial statements, we may discuss significant 
accounting and reporting matters with ERM and CCMC’s management. You will authorize ERM and the 
management of CCMC to furnish us with such cooperation and communication as we may consider 
desirable for those purposes. 
 

71



City of Cordova 
February 11, 2014 

Page 4 

Responsibilities of Management and Identification of the Applicable Financial Reporting 
Framework 
 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you and those charged with governance acknowledge 
and understand that you have responsibility (1) for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; (2) for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and (3) to provide us with access to all information of 
which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements, such as records, documentation and other matters. 
 
Your responsibilities also include identifying significant vendor relationships in which the vendor has 
responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. 
Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements 
and confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected 
misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period 
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken 
as a whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and 
detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government 
involving (1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) 
others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your 
responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud 
affecting the government received in communications from employees, former employees, grantors, 
regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the entity 
complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. Additionally, as 
required by OMB Circular A-133 and the State Audit Guide, it is management’s responsibility to 
follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings and to prepare a summary schedule 
of prior audit findings and a corrective action plan. The summary schedule of prior audit findings 
should be available for our review prior to the start of final fieldwork (February 2014). 
 
Management is also responsible for preparation of the schedule of federal expenditures of federal 
awards in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 and the schedule of state 
financial assistance in accordance with the State Audit Guide. You acknowledge and understand your 
responsibility for the preparation of all supplementary information, including the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards and the schedule of state financial assistance, in accordance with the 
applicable criteria. You also agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any 
document that contains the supplementary information and that indicates that we have reported on 
such supplementary information. You also agree to present the supplementary information with the 
audited financial statements, or, if the supplementary information will not be presented with the 
audited financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily available to the 
intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance of the 
supplementary information and our report thereon.  
 
You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have 
been engaged to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 
You agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains and 
indicates that we have reported on the supplementary information. You also agree to include the 

72



City of Cordova 
February 11, 2014 

Page 5 

audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes 
our report thereon or make the audited financial statements readily available to users of the 
supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with our 
report thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter 
that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with 
GAAP; (2) that you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly 
presented in accordance with GAAP; (3) that the methods of measurement or presentation have not 
changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); 
and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the 
measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.  
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit 
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous 
financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related to the 
objectives discussed in the Responsibilities of BDO section of this letter. This responsibility includes 
relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting 
from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or studies. You are also responsible 
for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as 
well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing 
that information.  
 
Management is responsible for recording proposed audit adjustments in the financial statements, 
after evaluating their propriety based on a review of both the applicable authoritative literature and 
the underlying supporting evidence from the City of Cordova’s files; or otherwise concluding and 
confirming in a representation letter (as further described below) provided to us at the conclusion of 
our audit that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements are, both individually and in the 
aggregate, immaterial to the financial statements taken as a whole. Additionally, as required by OMB 
Circular A-133 and the State Audit Guide, it is management’s responsibility to follow up and take 
corrective action on reported audit findings and to prepare a summary schedule of prior audit 
findings and a corrective action plan.  
 
As required by GAAS, we will request certain written representations from management at the close 
of our audit to confirm oral representations given to us and to indicate and document the continuing 
appropriateness of such representations and reduce the possibility of misunderstanding concerning 
matters that are the subject of the representations. Because of the importance of management’s 
representations to an effective audit, the City of Cordova agrees, subject to prevailing laws and 
regulations, to release and indemnify BDO, its Permitted Assignees (as defined herein under 
“Assignment”), and each of their respective employees from any liability and costs relating to our 
services rendered under this Agreement attributable to any knowing misrepresentations by 
management. 
 
At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of and 
electronically certify the Data Collection Form that summarizes our audit findings. We will provide a 
final copy of our reports in a PDF file to the City; however, it is management’s responsibility to 
upload the PDF version of the reporting package (including financial statements, schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings, auditor’s reports, and 
corrective action plan) and complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection Form. 
Management is responsible for electronically certifying the Data Collection Form and electronically 
submitting the completed Data Collection Form to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. It is 
management’s responsibility to provide the reporting package to pass-through entities, if required. 

73



City of Cordova 
February 11, 2014 

Page 6 

The Data Collection Form and the reporting package must be submitted electronically within the 
earlier of 30 days after receipt of the auditor’s reports or nine months after the end of the audit 
period, unless a longer period is agreed to in advance by the oversight agency for audit.  
 
Expected Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report 
 
At the conclusion of our audit, we will submit to you a report based on our audit and the report of 
the component auditors, containing our opinion as to whether the financial statements, taken as a 
whole, are fairly presented based on accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. If, during the course of our work, it appears for any reason that we will not be in a position 
to render an unqualified opinion on the financial statements or the Single Audit compliance, we will 
discuss this with you. It is possible, that because of unexpected circumstances, we may determine 
that we cannot render a report or otherwise complete the engagement. If, for any reason, we are 
unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline 
to express an opinion or decline to issue a report as a result of the engagement. If, in our 
professional judgment, the circumstances require, we may resign from the engagement prior to 
completion. 
 
The reports on internal control and compliance will each include a statement that the report is 
intended for the information and use of the governing board, management, specific legislative or 
regulatory bodies, federal and state awarding agencies and, if applicable, pass-through entities, and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Client Acceptance Matters 
 
BDO is accepting the City of Cordova as a client in reliance on information obtained during the 
course of our client acceptance procedures. Michelle Drew has been assigned the role of engagement 
partner and is responsible for directing the engagement and issuing the appropriate report on the 
City of Cordova’s financial statements. 
 
Email Communication 
 
In connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via email. As emails 
can be intercepted, disclosed, used, and/or otherwise communicated by an unintended third party, 
or may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed, we cannot ensure that 
emails from us will be properly delivered and read only by the addressee. Therefore, we disclaim 
and waive any liability for interception or unintentional disclosure of email transmissions, or for the 
unauthorized use or failed delivery of emails transmitted by us in connection with the performance 
of this engagement. In that regard, you agree that we shall have no liability for any loss or damage 
arising from the use of email, including any punitive, consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or 
special damages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated profits, or disclosure of confidential 
information. 
 
Ownership of Working Papers 
 
The proprietary working papers prepared in conjunction with our audit are the property of BDO, 
constitute confidential information, and will be retained by us in accordance with BDO’s policies and 
procedures. 
 

74



City of Cordova 
February 11, 2014 

Page 7 

However, pursuant to authority given by law or regulation, we may be requested to make certain 
working papers available to the City’s oversight agency, or its designee, a federal or state agency 
providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a 
quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities. We 
will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such working papers will be provided 
under the supervision of BDO personnel and at a location designated by BDO. Furthermore, upon 
request, we may provide photocopies of selected working papers to the aforementioned parties. 
These parties may intend or decide to distribute the photocopies of information contained therein to 
others, including other governmental agencies. 
 
Reproduction of Audit Report 
 
The City has permission to reproduce the audited financial statements in their entirety, along with 
our reports (opinion and compliance letters), without modification from that originally reviewed and 
approved by us.   However, if the City plans any reproduction or publication of our report along with 
any financial statements, not in its entirety as previously reviewed and approved, or any portion of 
it, a copy of that entire document in its final form should be submitted to us in sufficient time for 
our review and written approval before printing (e.g. a Popular Annual Financial Statement or other 
summary report). You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our 
written approval before it is distributed. If, in our professional judgment, the circumstances require, 
we may withhold our written approval.   
 
Posting of Audit Report and Financial Statements on Your Website 
 
You agree that, if you plan to post an electronic version of the financial statements and audit report on 
your website, you will ensure that there are no differences in content between the electronic version 
of the financial statements and audit report on your website and the signed version of the financial 
statements and audit report provided to management by BDO. You also agree to indemnify BDO from 
any and all claims that may arise from any differences between the electronic and signed versions. 
 
Review of Documents for Sale of Debt or Other Securities 
 
The audited financial statements and our report thereon should not be provided or otherwise made 
available to recipients of any document to be used in connection with the sale of debt or other 
securities (including securities offerings on the Internet) without first submitting copies of the 
document to us in sufficient time for our review and written approval.  If, in our professional 
judgment, the circumstances require, we may withhold our written approval. 
 
Availability of Records and Personnel 
 
You agree that all records, documentation, and information we request in connection with our audit 
will be made available to us (including those pertaining to related parties), that all material 
information will be disclosed to us, and that we will have full cooperation of, and unrestricted 
access to, your personnel during the course of the engagement. 
 
You also agree to ensure that any third-party valuation reports that you provide to us to support 
amounts or disclosures in the financial statements (a) indicate the purpose for which they were 
intended, which is consistent with your actual use of such reports; and (b) do not contain any 
restrictive language that would preclude us from using such reports as audit evidence. 
 

75



City of Cordova 
February 11, 2014 

Page 8 

Assistance by Your Personnel and Internet Access 
 
We also ask that your personnel prepare various schedules and analyses for our staff. However, 
except as otherwise noted by us, no personal information other than names related to City of 
Cordova employees and/or customers should be provided to us. In addition, we ask that you provide 
high-speed Internet access to our engagement team, if practicable, while working on the City’s 
premises. This assistance will serve to facilitate the progress of our work and minimize costs to you. 
 
Peer Review Reports  
 
Government Auditing Standards requires that we provide you with a copy of our most recent quality 
control review report. Our latest peer review report accompanies this letter. 
 
Other Services 
 
We are always available to meet with you and/or other executives at various times throughout the 
year to discuss current business, operational, accounting, and auditing matters affecting the City of 
Cordova. Whenever you feel such meetings are desirable, please let us know. We are also prepared 
to provide services to assist you in any of these areas. 
 
In addition to the audit services described above, you have requested that we provide the following 
non-attest services: 
 
We will assist the City in preparing the financial statements and related footnote disclosures for the 
year ended December 31, 2013 based on information in the trial balance and other information that 
comes to our attention during the course of our engagement.  We will also assist the City in 
preparing and submitting the required Form SF-SAC Data Collection Form. 
 
Independence 
 
Professional and certain regulatory standards require us to be independent, in both fact and 
appearance, with respect to the City in the performance of our services. Any discussions that you 
have with personnel of BDO regarding employment could pose a threat to our independence. 
Therefore, we request that you inform us immediately prior to any such discussions so that we can 
implement appropriate safeguards to maintain our independence.  
 
In order for us to remain independent, professional and regulatory standards require us to maintain 
certain respective roles and relationships with you with respect to the non-attest services described 
above. Prior to performing such services in conjunction with our audit, management must 
acknowledge its acceptance of certain responsibilities. 
 
We will not perform management functions or make management decisions on behalf of the City. 
However, we will provide advice and recommendations to assist management of the City in 
performing its functions and fulfilling its responsibilities.  
 
The City agrees to perform the following functions in connection with our performance of the (non-
attest services): 
 

a. Make all management decisions and perform all management functions with respect to the 
financial statements and data collection form preparation provided by us. 

76



City of Cordova 
February 11, 2014 

Page 9 

b. Assign Jon Stavig, Finance Director to oversee the financial statement and data collection 
form preparation and evaluate the adequacy and results of the services. 

c. Accept responsibility for the results of the financial statement and data collection form 
preparation. 

d. Establish and maintain internal controls over financial statement and data collection form 
preparation. 

 
The services are limited to those outlined above. We, in our professional judgment, reserve the right 
to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as making 
management decisions or performing management functions. The City must make all decisions with 
regard to our recommendations. By signing this Agreement, you acknowledge your acceptance of 
these responsibilities. 
 
Dispute Resolution Procedure 
 
All provisions of this agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Alaska.   
 
If any dispute, controversy, or claim arises out of, relates to, or results from the performance or 
breach of this Agreement, excluding claims for non-monetary or equitable relief (collectively, the 
“Dispute”), either party may, upon written notice to the other party, request non-binding mediation 
which can be declined by the non-requesting party with or without reason or cause. 
Such mediation shall be assisted by a neutral mediator acceptable to both parties and shall require 
the commercially reasonable efforts of the parties to discuss with each other in good faith their 
respective positions and different interests to finally resolve such Dispute. The mediator shall keep 
confidential all information disclosed during mediation, and not act as a witness for either party. 
Fees and expenses of the mediator, if any, shall be borne equally by the parties, while other costs 
incurred by each party in such mediation shall be borne solely by such party. Such mediation shall 
conclude after the parties have engaged in good faith settlement negotiations, but nonetheless are 
unable to resolve the Dispute through the mediation process.  
 
Any Dispute not resolved first by mediation between the parties shall be decided by binding 
arbitration. The arbitration proceeding shall take place Anchorage, unless the parties agree in 
writing to a different locale. In any arbitration instituted hereunder, the proceedings shall proceed 
in accordance with the then current Arbitration Rules for Professional Accounting and Related 
Disputes of the AAA, except that the Arbitration Panel shall permit discovery that is consistent with 
the scope of discovery typically permitted by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and/or is 
otherwise customary in light of the complexity of the Dispute and the amount in controversy. Any 
Dispute regarding discovery, or the relevance or scope thereof, shall be determined by the 
Arbitration Panel. 
 
The arbitration shall be conducted before a panel of three persons, one selected by each party, and 
the third selected by the two party-selected arbitrators (the “Arbitration Panel”). The party-
selected arbitrators shall be treated as neutrals. The Arbitration Panel shall have no authority to 
award non-monetary or equitable relief, but nothing herein shall be construed as a prohibition 
against a party from pursuing non-monetary or equitable relief in a state or federal court. The 
parties also waive the right to punitive damages and the arbitrators shall have no authority to award 
such damages or any other damages that are not strictly compensatory in nature. In rendering their 
award, the Arbitration Panel shall issue in writing findings of fact and conclusions of law. The 
Arbitration Panel shall not have authority to grant an award that is not supported by substantial 
evidence or that is based on an error of law, and such absence of substantial evidence or such error 

77



City of Cordova 
February 11, 2014 

Page 10 

of law may be reviewed on appeal to vacate an award based on the standard of review otherwise 
applicable in the Federal Appellate Court responsible for the jurisdiction in which the arbitration is 
venued, and without regard to any heightened standard of review otherwise applicable to an 
arbitration decision rendered by the AAA. The confidentiality provisions applicable to mediation shall 
also apply to arbitration. The award issued by the Arbitration Panel may be confirmed in a judgment 
by any federal or state court of competent jurisdiction. No payment of any award or posting of any 
bond of any kind whatsoever is required to be made or posted until such Dispute is finally 
determined. 
 
In no event shall a demand for arbitration be made after the date on which the initiation of the legal 
or equitable proceeding on the same Dispute would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations 
or repose. For the purposes of applying the statute of limitations or repose, receipt of a written 
demand for arbitration by the AAA shall be deemed the initiation of the legal or equitable 
proceeding based on such Dispute. 
 
Fees 
 
Our charges to the City of Cordova for the services described above will be $47,500 plus out of 
pocket costs.  This fee is based on the following assumptions: your personnel will prepare certain 
schedules and analyses for us and make available to us documents for our examination as and when 
requested; there will be no significant changes in the internal controls, accounting systems, key 
personnel, or structure of the organization; there will be no significant additions of funds or 
disposal/divesture of business-type activities; and there will not be any unanticipated increases in 
current operations requiring significant additional audit time.  
 
Please note in the last few years, we have had to record a number of audit adjustments to correct 
the financial statements.  These adjustments are not included in the above audit fee and, if 
required, will be billed separately. 
 
This engagement includes only those services specifically described in this Agreement; any additional 
services not specified herein will be agreed to in a separate letter. In the event you request us to 
respond to, or we receive and respond to, a validly issued subpoena, court order, government 
regulatory inquiry, or other similar request or legal process against the City or its management for 
the production of documents and/or testimony relative to information we obtained and/or prepared 
during the course of this or any prior engagements, you agree to compensate us for all time we 
expend in connection with such response, at our regular rates, and to reimburse us for all related 
out-of-pocket costs (including outside lawyer fees) that we incur. 
 
Our fees and costs will be billed periodically, and are payable within 30 days of the invoice date. In 
the event that any collection action is required to collect unpaid balances due to us, you agree to 
reimburse us for all our costs of collection, including without limitation, attorneys’ fees. 
 
If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, or for any other reason provided for in this 
Agreement, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of 
termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for 
all of our time expended, and to reimburse us for all of our out-of-pocket expenses, through the 
date of termination. 
 
 
 

78



City of Cordova 
February 11, 2014 

Page 11 

Third-Party Use 
 
BDO will perform the professional services provided in connection with this engagement solely for 
the information and use of the City of Cordova, the federal audit clearinghouse, and the State of 
Alaska Single Audit office.  BDO does not anticipate and does not authorize reliance by any other 
party on its professional services. Any amendment to this provision must be made through a written 
document signed by the City of Cordova and BDO. 
 
Miscellaneous 
 
This Agreement is intended to cover only the services specified herein, although we look forward to 
many more years of pleasant association with the City of Cordova. This engagement is a separate and 
discrete event and any future services will be covered by a separate agreement to provide services. 
 
Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such a manner as to be 
effective and valid under applicable laws, regulations, or published interpretations, but if any 
provision of this Agreement shall be deemed prohibited, invalid, or otherwise unenforceable for any 
reason under such applicable laws, regulations, or published interpretations, such provisions shall be 
ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition, invalidity, or unenforceability and such revised 
provision shall be made a part of this Agreement as if it was specifically set forth herein. 
Furthermore, the provisions of the foregoing sentence shall not invalidate the remainder of such 
provision or the other provisions of this Agreement. 
 
This Agreement may be transmitted in electronic format and shall not be denied legal effect solely 
because it was formed or transmitted, in whole or in part, by electronic record; however, this 
Agreement must then remain capable of being retained and accurately reproduced, from time to 
time, by electronic record by the parties to this Agreement and all other persons or entities required 
by law. An electronically transmitted signature to this Agreement will be deemed an acceptable 
original for purposes of consummating this Agreement and binding the party providing such 
electronic signature. 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
We believe the foregoing correctly sets forth our understanding; however, if you have any questions, 
please let us know. If you find the foregoing arrangements acceptable, please acknowledge this by 
signing and returning to us a copy of this Agreement and retaining a copy for your files. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
Michelle Drew, CPA 
BDO USA, LLP 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ __________________________________ 
Finance Director    City Manager 
 
owledged: 

79



City of Cordova 
February 11, 2014 

Page 12 

 
Municipality of Anchorage 
 
 
 
By:         Date:      
        Barbara Jones, Contract Administrator 
 
 

80



John: 
My thought is we put it on the agenda for discussion on Weds?  Are you ok w that? You would need to 
join us by phone to provide some insight and recommendations. 
v/r 
 
Randy 
 
From: John Bitney [mailto:johnbitney@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, February 26, 2014 3:07 PM 
To: Randy Robertson 
Subject: Fw: Reopener for Unknown Injury Resolution 
 

Randy: 
Below is an email received from Senator Gardner's requesting the City of Cordova to 
review her resolution supporting re-opening the litigation against Exxon Mobile for 
the 1989 spill. 
 
Here is a web link to the resolution: 
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/PDF/28/Bills/SJR025A.PDF 
 
While I have numerous questions about this issue, I want to honor the Senator's 
request to share this resolution.  My belief is that the key provision of the resolution is 
found on page 4, lines 12-16, which gives the time frame for terminating the claim. 
 
Thank you 
John 
 
----- Forwarded Message ----- 
From: Noah Hanson <Noah.Hanson@akleg.gov> 
To: "johnbitney@yahoo.com" <johnbitney@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, February 18, 2014 12:12 PM 
Subject: Reopener for Unknown Injury Resolution 
 
Hey John, 
Attached is the version that was read across today. I am putting together a bill packet 
for it and was hoping that I could get a letter of support from the City of Cordova. Let me 
know if you got any questions.  
Thanks, 

NOAH HANSON 

SENATOR BERTA GARDNER 
716 WEST 4TH AVE 
ANCHORAGE, AK 99501 
907-269-0155 
ALASKASENATEDEMS.COM/GARDNER 
FACEBOOK.COM/BERTAGARDNER 

81



 

SJR025A -1- SJR 25 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

28-LS1438\N 
 
 

 
 
 

 SENATE JOINT RESOLUTION NO. 25 

 
IN THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA 

 
TWENTY-EIGHTH LEGISLATURE - SECOND SESSION 

 

BY SENATOR GARDNER 

 

Introduced:  2/18/14 

Referred:   Judiciary 

 

 

A RESOLUTION 

 

Urging the Alaska Department of Law and the United States Department of Justice to 1 

file a motion in United States District Court to compel the ExxonMobil Corporation to 2 

honor the commitment to pay additional damages for the Exxon Valdez oil spill under 3 

the "Reopener for Unknown Injury" provision of the 1991 Agreement and Consent 4 

Decree and to collect the full demand for payment the state and federal government 5 

submitted to the ExxonMobil Corporation on August 31, 2006; and urging the Exxon 6 

Valdez Oil Spill Trustee Council immediately to initiate subsurface lingering oil 7 

restoration work. 8 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA: 9 

WHEREAS the historic legal settlement between Exxon Corporation, the State of 10 

Alaska, and the United States of America resolving damage claims related to the 1989 Exxon 11 

Valdez oil spill (Agreement and Consent Decree, Civil Actions No. 3:91-0082 and 3:91-0083, 12 

United States District Court for the District of Alaska) entered October 9, 1991, began one of 13 

the most extensive attempts in history to restore environmental damage from an industrial 14 

82



   28-LS1438\N 

SJR 25 -2- SJR025A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

disaster; and 1 

WHEREAS, in addition to the civil recovery of $900,000,000, the criminal restitution 2 

of $100,000,000, and a fine of $25,000,000, a clause of the Agreement and Consent Decree, 3 

provided for a "Reopener for Unknown Injury" that committed the ExxonMobil Corporation 4 

to pay up to an additional $100,000,000, as needed, to restore oil-damaged populations, 5 

habitats, or species in the spill zone if the injury "could not reasonably have been known…nor 6 

anticipated" at the time of settlement; and 7 

WHEREAS, in 2006, the Twenty-Fourth Alaska State Legislature, in HJR 9, 8 

Legislative Resolve No. 52, urged "the United States Department of Justice and the Alaska 9 

Department of Law to identify all natural resource damages from the Exxon Valdez oil spill 10 

that were unanticipated at the time of the settlement, to develop plans to remedy the damages, 11 

and to present the ExxonMobil Corporation with a request for the full $100,000,000 available 12 

under the reopener clause to enact these plans"; and 13 

WHEREAS, in 2006, the Alaska Attorney General found that "after extensive review 14 

it is clear that populations and habitat within the oil spill area have suffered substantial and 15 

unanticipated injuries that are attributable to the Exxon Valdez oil spill"; and 16 

WHEREAS the most recent "Status of Injured Resources and Services" published by 17 

the Exxon Valdez Oil Spill Trustee Council in May 2010 states that only 13 of the 32 18 

monitored resources and resource services injured by the spill are "recovered" or "very likely 19 

recovered," and some, such as Pacific herring, pigeon guillemots, and the AT1 transient orcas, 20 

are "not recovering"; and  21 

WHEREAS state and federal studies confirm that a substantial amount of Exxon 22 

Valdez oil remains on beaches in substrates; that the oil is "nearly as toxic as it was the first 23 

few weeks after the spill"; that "the remaining oil will take decades and possibly centuries to 24 

disappear entirely"; and that enzyme markers in birds, fish, and mammals in the spill region 25 

"indicate a continuing exposure to oil"; and 26 

WHEREAS, on June 1, 2006, under the "Reopener for Unknown Injury" provision, 27 

the state and United States government jointly presented the ExxonMobil Corporation with a 28 

"Comprehensive Plan for Habitat Restoration Projects Pursuant to the Reopener for Unknown 29 

Injury" to remediate lingering oil in intertidal sediments along the shoreline of the injured 30 

ecosystem, including a specific timeline for remedies the state and federal governments have 31 

83



   28-LS1438\N 

SJR025A -3- SJR 25 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

committed to take as a result of the unanticipated and ongoing injury from the oil spill; and  1 

WHEREAS, on August 31, 2006, under the "Reopener for Unknown Injury" 2 

provision, the state and the United States government jointly presented ExxonMobil 3 

Corporation with a demand for payment of an additional $92,240,982; and 4 

WHEREAS, although it had agreed to the "Reopener for Unknown Injury" provision 5 

in the 1991 settlement, the ExxonMobil Corporation has refused to pay the government 6 

demand, and the state and federal governments have not filed a motion in court seeking to 7 

collect payment; and 8 

WHEREAS, in the "Comprehensive Plan for Habitat Restoration Projects Pursuant to 9 

the Reopener for Unknown Injury" and "Subsurface Lingering Oil Restoration Timeline," the 10 

state and federal governments stated that they would complete a "Draft Restoration Plan" and 11 

an "Environmental Assessment" in 2008 and begin implementing the full lingering oil 12 

remediation program in early 2009; and  13 

WHEREAS, in the "Subsurface Lingering Oil Restoration Timeline," the state and 14 

federal governments asserted that the full program would be well underway, if not mostly 15 

complete, by now; and  16 

WHEREAS the state and federal governments are more than six years behind 17 

schedule in implementing the "Subsurface Lingering Oil Restoration Timeline" project, citing 18 

"unexpected contracting issues" and "short field seasons and difficult working conditions in 19 

Alaska" as well as lack of payment of the "Reopener for Unknown Injury" demand presented 20 

to the ExxonMobil Corporation in 2006; and 21 

WHEREAS former Governor Frank Murkowski, whose administration submitted the 22 

demand for payment claim related to the "Reopener for Unknown Injury" to the ExxonMobil 23 

Corporation in 2006, expressed frustration at the slow pace of resolving the claim in a 24 

February 28, 2011, letter to the United States District Court, stating "it is in the public interest 25 

that the governments move from continuing study to resolution as soon as practical. Alaska 26 

deserves closure on this issue after 22 years"; and  27 

WHEREAS the Untitled States District Court's March 7, 2011, order stated "the court 28 

urges the governments and their trustees to proceed with all possible speed to complete 29 

studies that are underway and any necessary evaluation which they may require"; and  30 

WHEREAS the United States District Court's February 15, 2012, order stated "the 31 

84



   28-LS1438\N 

SJR 25 -4- SJR025A 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

court urges the parties to quickly resolve this matter themselves, if they are able to do so"; and 1 

WHEREAS the United States District Court's July 1, 2013, order expressed the 2 

court's frustration with the slow pace of government progress under the "Reopener for 3 

Unknown Injury" restoration plan, stating "the court is dismayed that so few of the projects 4 

that the Governments had expected to be completed by now have been completed"; and 5 

WHEREAS the governments have demonstrated effective techniques to remediate 6 

subsurface oil by injecting nutrients and oxygen compounds into the subsurface; and 7 

WHEREAS the ongoing delay in implementing the "Reopener for Unknown Injury" 8 

restoration plan continues to damage the Alaska coastal ecosystem; and  9 

WHEREAS the unresolved "Reopener for Unknown Injury" claim makes the Exxon 10 

Valdez litigation the longest-lasting environmental litigation in history; and  11 

WHEREAS the tolling agreement between the governments and the ExxonMobil 12 

Corporation was terminated by the ExxonMobil Corporation on June 25, 2010, triggering a 13 

period of limitation on collecting the "Reopener for Unknown Injury" claim that the 14 

ExxonMobil Corporation may argue expires in six years, potentially terminating the 15 

possibility of collecting the claim on June 24, 2016; and 16 

WHEREAS the United States District Court has ruled that any "Reopener for 17 

Unknown Injury" claim may be brought only by the state and federal governments; until the 18 

governments' "Reopener for Unknown Injury" claim is formally placed before the court, the 19 

court cannot intervene to resolve the ongoing dispute on the matter between the governments 20 

and the ExxonMobil Corporation; 21 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Alaska State Legislature expresses its profound 22 

disappointment in the continuing refusal of the ExxonMobil Corporation to honor the 23 

commitment it made in the 1991 settlement to pay a "Reopener for Unknown Injury" claim 24 

made by the governments; and be it 25 

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Alaska State Legislature urges the Alaska 26 

Department of Law and the United States Department of Justice to immediately file a motion 27 

in United States District Court to collect the full amount of the demand for payment of 28 

$92,240,982 presented to the ExxonMobil Corporation on August 31, 2006, plus five percent 29 

interest--approximately $35,000,000--on the delinquent payment; and be it 30 

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Alaska State Legislature urges that, until the full 31 

85



   28-LS1438\N 

SJR025A -5- SJR 25 
 New Text Underlined [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]  
 

"Reopener for Unknown Injury" demand for payment, plus interest, is collected from the 1 

ExxonMobil Corporation and the "Reopener for Unknown Injury" payment is finally made, 2 

the Exxon Valdez Oil Spill Trustee Council use existing funds to immediately initiate the 3 

subsurface lingering oil restoration work. 4 

COPIES of this resolution shall be sent to the Honorable Barack Obama, President of 5 

the United States; the Honorable Joseph R. Biden, Jr., Vice-President of the United States and 6 

President of the U.S. Senate; the Honorable John Boehner, Speaker of the U.S. House of 7 

Representatives; the Honorable Nancy Pelosi, Minority Leader of the U.S. House of 8 

Representatives; the Honorable Harry Reid, Majority Leader of the U.S. Senate; the 9 

Honorable Mitch McConnell, Minority Leader of the U.S. Senate; the Honorable Eric H. 10 

Holder, Jr., Attorney General of the United States; the Honorable Michael C. Geraghty, 11 

Alaska Attorney General; the Exxon Valdez Oil Spill Trustee Council; and the Honorable 12 

Lisa Murkowski and the Honorable Mark Begich, U.S. Senators, and the Honorable Don 13 

Young, U.S. Representative, members of the Alaska delegation in Congress. 14 

86



Pending agenda:  
 

Capital Priorities List Meeting - June 4, 2014; Sep 3, 2014; Dec 3, 2014; Mar 4, 2015 

 

HSB Quarterly regular meetings Apr 2, 2014; July 2, 2014; Oct 1, 2014; Jan 7, 2015 

 

Staff quarterly reports in packets: Apr 16, 2014; July 16, 2014; Oct 15, 2014; Jan 21, 2014 

 

March 13, 2014 - Special Meeting per: 

2.48.120 Validity of election—Certification by city council. 

A. Within nine days after the day of the election, the city council shall meet to review the 

certificate of returns prepared and delivered by the election board chairperson, and any election 

contests or applications for a recount.  

What time would Council like to meet on March 13? Noon, 7pm, ?? 

 

Committees:  
 

Cordova Center Committee: Tim Joyce, Sylvia Lange, Randy Robertson, Kristin Carpenter, 

Native Village of Eyak Representative, Chamber of Commerce Representative, Business 

Community Representative, PWSSC Representative, Stage of the Tides Representative. 

 

Fisheries Advisory Committee: David Reggiani, PWSAC; Ken Roemhildt, Seafood Sales; Jim 

Holley, AML; Torie Baker, Marine Advisory Program Coordinator; John Bocci; and 

Jeremy Botz, ADF&G  

  

Cordova Trails Committee: Elizabeth Senear, VACANCY, Jim Kallander, Toni Godes, and 

David Zastrow  

 

Calendars:  
 

3 months of calendars are attached hereto  

Mar 2014; Apr 2014; May 2014 

87



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat  

Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

     1 

2 3 

 

Absentee voting at 

City Hall  

4 Cordova Regular 

Election  

Polls open 7am—8pm 

LMR 

5 

 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

6 

District Tournament 

Basketball in Cordova 

7 

District Tournament 

Basketball in Cordova 

Clerk out on vacation 

8 

District Tournament 

Basketball in Cordova 

9 10 11 

6:30 P&Z LMR 

12 

7:00 Sch Bd HSL 

7:00 Hrbr Cms CH 

13 

Spec Mtg to certify 

Election time (tba) 

14 

 

 

Clerk out on vacation 

15 

16 17 18 19 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

20 21 22 

23 24 

 

25 26 27 28 

Alaska Shield Exer-

cise 

Clerk out on vacation 

29 

 

Alaska Shield Exer-

cise 

30 31 

Seward’s Day  

City Hall 

Offices Closed 

    Location Legend 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

March 2014 

88



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat  

Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

 1 2 

HSB time tba 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

3 4 

 

 

 

Clerk out on vacation 

5 

6 7 8 

 

6:30 P&Z LMR 

9 

 

7:00 Sch Bd HSL 

7:00 Hrbr Cms CH 

10 11 

 

 

 

Clerk out on vacation 

12 

13 14 

 

CSD—spring break 

15 

 

CSD—spring break 

16 

CSD—spring break 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

17 

 

CSD—spring break 

18 

 

CSD—spring break 

 

Clerk out on vacation 

19 

20 

 

Easter Sunday 

21 

 

BOE Hearing 7pm 

22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30   Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

April 2014 

89



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat  

Location Legend 

CH-City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR-Library Mtg Rm 

HSL-High School Li-

brary 

   1 

 

 

 

Clerk out on vacation 

2 

 

 

 

Clerk out on vacation 

3 

4 5 6 7 

 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

8 9 10 

11 12 13 

 

6:30 P&Z LMR 

14 

 

7:00 Sch Bd HSL 

7:00 Hrbr Cms CH 

15 16 17 

 

CHS Graduation 

18 19 20 21 

 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

22 23 24 

25 26 

Memorial Day  

City Hall 

Offices Closed 

27 28 29 30 

 

 

 

Clerk out on vacation 

31 

May 2014 

90


	super for 03-05-14 reg mtg
	Memo re RES 03-14-13 for 03-05-14
	Resolution 03-14-13 Asset Allocation for 2014
	Minutes 02-19-14 Regular Meeting
	Contract approval of RFP 02-14 for 03-05-14
	RFP 02-14 CC
	CITY OF CORDOVA
	Office of City Manager


	RFP 02-14 Baler Shell
	RFP 02-14 Baler Shell Addendum #1
	Addendum2
	From: Ron Nordquist [mailto:ronsgen@gci.net]  Sent: Wednesday, February 19, 2014 12:04 PM To: Josh Hallquist (as PW Director); 'Jerry & Vicki Blackler'; 'Eagle Contracting'; hconstructionak@gmail.com; 'Bill'; 'James Perry'; 'paul cloyd' Cc: wilsonc1@a...


	Citizens Advisory Committe to Council 03-05-14
	CITY OF CORDOVA
	Office of Chief of Police


	03-05-14 REPORT
	att 03-05-14 Charter & Code on required votes for different things
	02-18-14 email from Swartzbart in re Whitshed speed limit
	ADP51.tmp
	Alaska Dept. of Transportation and Public Facilities                                  1/19/2011
	Cordova is actively seeking a multiuse separated pathway that could be constructed along Whitshed to the park. Last fall we submitted a Tiger II planning grant application and also a nomination for a Whitshed Road multiuse pathway project to the STIP....
	We are looking forward to the conference call with you to discuss this further scheduled for Friday January 28, 2011 at 10:00 in Prince William Sound Aquaculture conference room. Please call (907) 424-4038
	Sincerely,
	Jack Stevenson, AKDOT, Cordova
	Mike Hicks,  Alaska State Troopers
	Robert Baty, Cordova Police Chief
	Dave Reggiani, Vice Mayor Cordova
	Mark Lynch, Cordova City Manager
	Angela Arnold, Executive Director, Native Village of Eyak
	Jim Nygaard, Cordova School District Superintendent
	Susan Herschleb, Cordova  Director of Parks and Recreation
	Tom Cohenour, Cordova Director of Public Works
	Karen Swartzbart, Safe Route to School
	Cc: Jeff Jeffers, P.E.                           James S. “Steve” Titus, P.E.
	Commissioner Marc Luiken         AK. State House Representative  Bill Thomas


	Chenega IRA Council ask for donation 02-28-14
	Memo re RES 03-14-14 & 03-14-15 for 03-05-14
	Resolution 03-14-14 Budget Amendment to Fund Chip Seal Oil
	Resolution 03-14-15 Amending 2014 Budget for Road Maintainance Initiatives
	att to 03-14-15 for 03-05-14
	Memo to Council March 5 2014
	BDO Arrangement Letter 03-05-14
	Hanson-Bitney-Robertson email string in re reopener res for 03-05-14
	att to 03-05-14 exxon reopener
	maraprmay
	Pending Agenda

